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The board of directors are responsible for overseeing the corporate governance of GoConnect Limited (“the 
Company”) and are responsible for setting its major objectives and ensuring the strategic direction of the 
Company is in the best interests of all shareholders.  

The board is first and foremost accountable to provide value to its shareholders through delivery of timely and 
balanced disclosures. 

The board’s governance document has been made publicly available on the Company’s website. This document 
details the adopted practices and processes in relation to matters reserved for the board’s consideration and 
decision-making and specifies the level of authorisation provided to other key management personnel (KMP). 
The board is ultimately responsible for ensuring its actions are in accordance with key corporate governance 
principles.

Unless disclosed below, all the recommendations of the ASX Corporate Governance Council have been applied 
for the entire financial year ended 30 June 2015. The board has adopted appropriate corporate governance 
policies and practices. The Company’s main corporate governance policies are summarised below: 

The board composition 
The skills, experience and expertise relevant to the position of each director who is in office at the date of the 
annual report and their term of office are detailed in the directors’ report. 

Board charter and composition 

The board’s composition is determined by all directors pursuant to the Company’s constitution on the following 
principles: 
• the board shall not consist of more than eight directors, with a minimum of three; 
• the board may appoint directors either to acquire additional expertise or to fill a vacancy. Non-executive 

directors bring a fresh perspective to the board’s consideration of strategy, risk and performance matters 
and are best placed to exercise independent judgement and review and constructively challenge the 
performance of management; 

• the Company shall maintain a mix of directors on the board from different backgrounds with 
complementary skills and experience; 

• the Company shall undertake an annual board performance review and consider the appropriate mix of 
skills required by the board to maximise its effectiveness and its contribution to the Company; 

• the board, being mindful of the resources and the small management team currently available and the 
unique drive and skill currently required and available to execute the business model of the Company, 
deemed it appropriate that the Chairman should act as Executive Chairman until such time when it deemed 
it appropriate to appoint a Chief Executive Officer or Managing Director; and 

• the board shall comprise a majority of non-executive directors. 

Responsibilities 

The responsibilities of the board include: 
• providing strategic guidance to the Company including input into and approval of management’s 

development of corporate strategy and performance objectives; 
• overseeing the operation of the Company, including its operations and accountability systems; 
• appointment, performance assessment and, if necessary, removal of the Chief Executive Officer (or 

Managing Director); 
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• ratifying the appointment and/or removal, and contributing to the performance assessment of senior 
management, including the Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary; 

• reviewing and ratifying systems of risk management and internal compliance and control, codes of conduct, 
and legal compliance; 

• monitoring and approving financial and other compliance reporting, and liaison with the Company’s 
auditors; 

• monitoring management’s implementation of strategy, and ensuring appropriate resources are available; 
and 

• approving and monitoring the progress of major capital expenditure and other significant corporate projects 
including any acquisitions and divestments. 

The responsibilities delegated to senior executives include: 

• development of corporate strategy, business plans and performance objectives; 
• execution of the above, including development and implementation of systems, procedures and structures; 
• management of operations, projects, staff and other resources; and 
• reporting on performance. 

All senior executives have formal job descriptions and letters of appointment describing their terms of 
appointment, duties, rights, responsibilities and entitlements on termination. The Executive Chairman reviews 
the performance of each senior executive at regular intervals according to relevant appropriate yardsticks. 

The Corporate Governance Statement containing information on matters reserved for the board, matters 
delegated to senior executives, and the board charter is available to the public on the Company’s corporate web 
site.  

Structure of the board 

The board has been structured to add value to the Company’s circumstances. 

Directors’ independence 
The board has deemed directors to be independent if they are free from any interest and any business or other 
relationship that could, or could reasonably be perceived to, materially interfere with their ability to act in the 
best interest of the Company. 

Materiality for these purposes is determined on both quantitative and qualitative bases. An amount of over 5% 
of annual turnover of the Company or Group is considered quantitatively material for these purposes. A 
transaction of any amount or a relationship is deemed qualitatively material if knowledge of it may impact the 
shareholders’ understanding of the director’s performance. In addition, independent directors should hold less 
than 10% of the Company shares directly and indirectly. 

All directors have undertaken to promptly inform the board of any changes in interests that may affect their 
independence. 

In accordance with the above criteria, Philip Chan is considered non-executive independent director of the 
board.

ASX Corporate Governance Council Recommendation 2.1 requires a majority of the board to be independent 
directors. Recommendation 2.2 requires that the chairperson should be an independent director. 
Recommendation 2.3 states that the roles of chairperson and chief executive officer should not be exercised by 
the same individual.  Recommendation 2.4 states that the board should establish a nomination committee. 
Recommendations 2.1, 2.2, 2.3 and 2.4 were not followed by the Company during the reporting period. The 
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board considers specific personal expertise and industry experience to be important attributes of board members 
and mindful of the resources available to the Company, believes that the composition of the board is 
appropriate given the size and business development of the Company at the present stage.  

Performance assessment 

The board undertakes an annual self-assessment of its collective performance and individual directors’ 
performance. 

Appointment and retirement of directors 

The appointment and retirement of non-executive directors are determined by the board on a case by case basis 
and in conformity with all legal requirements. The directors may from time to time appoint one of their 
members to the office of Managing Director for a period not exceeding 5 years, and subject to the terms on any 
agreement entered into in any particular case, may revoke any such appointment.  

The Company’s governing constitution requires that all directors apart from the Managing Director are to be re-
elected every three years, and at each annual general meeting at least one-third of all non-executive directors 
shall retire from office. Where eligible, a director may stand for re-election. 

Independent professional advice 

Independence is clearly delineated by the separation of executive and non-executive directors. It is the board’s 
policy that all directors in the exercise of their duties and responsibilities have the right to seek independent 
professional advice at the Company’s expense. Prior consent of the Chairman is required and professional 
advice obtained is to be made available to the board. 

A Corporate Governance Statement containing information on procedures for the appointment and retirement 
of directors, assessment of their independence and performance, and provision for independent professional 
advice is available to the public on the Company’s corporate web site. 

Code of conduct - Ethical standards 

The Company is committed to the highest standard of business and ethical conduct. The board has adopted a 
Code of Conduct setting out the standards required for executives, management and employees in the exercise 
and performance of their duties and responsibilities. 
The Code of Conduct provides that all employees are to: 
• comply with the law; 
• act in the best interest of the Company; 
• act with integrity, fairness and honesty; 
• avoid conflict of interests; 
• maintain confidentiality of the Company’s business dealings; and 
• be accountable for their own actions. 

Equity participation 

The Company encourages directors, employees and related parties to own shares in the Company. 

Diversity Policy

Diversity includes, but is not limited to, gender, age, ethnicity and cultural background. The Company is 
committed to diversity and recognises the benefits arising from employee and board diversity and the 
importance of benefiting from all available talent. Accordingly, the Company has established a diversity policy. 
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This diversity policy outlines requirements for the board to develop measurable objectives for achieving 
diversity, and annually assess both the objectives and the progress in achieving those objectives. Due to the 
small number of employee and board, the objectives of the diversity including gender diversity could not be 
met.  

Securities Trading Policy 

The Company’s internal control policies require all directors and employees to observe confidentiality of 
information on negotiations and developments of the Company until announced to the Australian Securities 
Exchange (ASX). The Company’s securities trading policy further provides that directors, employees and 
related parties should not deal in securities in the Company while in possession of any information which if 
generally available might have a material effect on the value of such securities. Directors and employees are 
advised only to deal in the Company’s shares after a reasonable time gap has elapsed following the issue of an 
announcement to ASX. These requirements are included in the Employee Handbook given to all new 
employees. 

A Corporate Governance Statement containing information on the Company’s code of conduct and policy on 
trading in the Company’s securities for directors, senior executives and other employees, is available to the 
public on the Company’s corporate web site. 

Audit Committee 
During the financial year ended 30 June 2015, the Audit Committee was chaired by Richard Li, the executive 
chairman. Due to the small number of directors available, the requirements of ASX Corporate Governance 
Council Recommendation 4.2 on the number of members and independence of directors on the Audit 
Committee could not be met. 

The charter/principal functions of the Audit Committee are to: 
• establish and monitor the effectiveness of internal control procedures; 
• review interim and annual financial statements of the Company; 
• appoint, remove and review the scope and performance of external auditors; 
• review external audit reports against internal risk management practices; 
• ensure compliance in financial matters with all legal and regulatory requirements; 
• review and monitor internal procedures for compliance with laws, regulations and industry guidelines 

affecting the Company’s businesses; 
• liaise with industry groups of which the Company is a member and developing and recommending policies 

to the board in connection with the Company’s role as an industry advocate; and 
• monitor changes to the law and regulation of the media and Internet industries and recommending to the 

board operational and policy responses to such changes. 

External auditors 

The Audit Committee meets with the external auditor twice each year in the course of the preparation of the 
half-year and full year financial reports to ensure that these have been prepared in accordance with the 
Corporations Act and ASX requirements. 

The Audit Committee receive from the external auditor each year a statement confirming that the conduct of the 
audit meets required auditing standards including those on independence and rotation of external audit 
engagement partners.  

The external auditor is requested to attend the annual general meeting and be available to answer shareholder 
questions about the conduct of the audit and the preparation and content of the audit report. 
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Continuous disclosure and shareholder communication 

The Company has established policies and procedures on information disclosure that focus on continuous 
disclosure of any information concerning the Company and its controlled entities that a reasonable person 
would expect to have a material effect on the price of the Company’s securities. These policies and procedures 
also include the arrangements the Company has in place to promote communications with shareholders and 
encourage effective participation at general meetings. 

The Company Secretary has been nominated as the person responsible for communications with the ASX. This 
role includes responsibility for ensuring compliance with the continuous disclosure requirements in ASX 
Listing Rules and overseeing and co-ordinating information disclosure to ASX, analysts, brokers, shareholders, 
the media and the public.  

All information disclosed to ASX is posted on the Company’s web site as soon as it is disclosed to ASX. 
Procedures are established to ensure any information provided to analysts or media during briefings is also 
immediately released to ASX. 

All shareholders receive a full copy of the Company’s annual report. Other measures to facilitate 
communication with shareholder include making all Company announcements, media briefings, press releases, 
details of general meetings, and the annual report for the last year available on the Company’s website. 

A copy of the Company’s Corporate Governance Statement, including policies on continuous disclosure and 
shareholder communication are posted on the Company’s corporate website. 

Shareholders are entitled to vote on significant matters impacting on the business, which include the election 
and remuneration of directors, changes to the constitution and receipt of annual and interim financial 
statements. Shareholders are strongly encouraged to attend and participate in the Annual General Meetings of 
the Company, to lodge questions to be responded by the board, and are able to appoint proxies. 

Risk management 

The board are primarily responsible for the identification and monitoring of principal risks faced by the 
business. The Company is continuously undertaking detailed reviews of potential risks in the ever-changing 
market. The Company has sound internal management control procedures that require regular reporting of the 
nature of those risks to the board, and practical measures that mitigate against those risks. 

Corporate reporting 

The Executive Chairman and Chief Financial Officer are required, in relation to annual and half-yearly 
financial reports, to make the following certifications to the board: 
• that the Company’s financial reports are complete and present a true and fair view, in all material respects, 

of the financial condition and operational results of the Company and the consolidated entity and are in 
accordance with the relevant accounting standards 

• that the above statement (including the Corporations Act S.295A declaration) is founded on a sound system 
of risk management and internal compliance and control and which implements the policies adopted by the 
board, and the Company’s risk management and internal compliance and control is operating efficiently 
and effectively in all material respects in relation to financial risk reporting. 

A copy of the Company’s Corporate Governance Statement, including policies on risk management and internal 
controls are posted on the Company’s corporate website. 
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Remuneration Policies and Committee 

The Company’s policies on remuneration, including entitlements and restrictions under any equity based 
remuneration schemes, are detailed in the Remuneration Report of the Annual Report to shareholders. 

During the financial year ended 30 June 2015, the Remuneration Committee was chaired by Richard Li, the 
executive chairman. Due to the small number of directors available, the requirements of ASX Corporate 
Governance Council Recommendation 8.2 on the number of members and independence of directors on the 
Remuneration Committee could not be met.  

The committee reviews the remuneration arrangements for all directors taking into account the range of skills, 
experience and expertise of the current members, and the resources available to and required by the Company.  
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The directors of GoConnect Limited (“the Parent Entity” or “the Company”) present their report together with 
the consolidated financial statements of the Company and its controlled entities (together “the Consolidated 
Entity” or “the Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2015 and the auditors’ report thereon. 

INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS 

Richard Li • Executive Chairman 

• B. Bus 

Experience • Board member since 1999. Over 30 years in investment research, equity fund 
management, investment advisory service and stock broking with major 
Australian institutions. 

Special responsibilities • Chairman of Audit Committee 

• Chairman of Remuneration Committee 

Directorship of other listed 
entities – in the past 3 years 

• None 

Interest in shares and options • 20,000,000 options to acquire ordinary shares held by personal and related 
entities 

Kevin Wong • Executive Director (appointed on 27 March 2015) 

• MEngSc(EE), MAppSc(IT), BE(EE) 

Experience • Kevin has more than 20 years’ experience in the IT industry. He joined 
GoConnect in 2000 and was one of the core developers of GoConnect's 
patented GoTrek IPTV technology and then head of the Operations 
department. Prior to GoConnect, he worked for the Telstra Research 
Laboratories and HSBC.  

Special responsibilities • None 

Directorship of other listed 
entities – in the past 3 years 

• None 

Interest in shares and options • 1,000,000 options to acquire ordinary shares 

Philip Chan • Non-executive Independent Director  

Experience • Board member since 2007. Philip joined the entertainment industry in 1976 
and by 1990 was well celebrated for his roles as actor, director and producer 
of 14 movies. His management skills were proven by successes as General 
Manager of Capital Artists, responsible for promoting many singing artists 
to superstardom, and as Managing Director responsible for turning Hong 
Kong’s newest radio station, Metro Broadcasts, into a profitable operation. 
He has also been successful in establishing a chain of Planet Hollywood 
restaurants and in promoting concerts and marketing events in South East 
Asia. He was the Chief Operating Officer of Emperor Motion Pictures, Life 
Chairman of the Hong Kong Film Directors’ Guild, and a committee 
member of the Hong Kong Performing Artists Guild.  

Special responsibilities • None 

Directorship of other listed 
entities – in the past 3 years 

• None 

Interest in shares and options • 1,000,000 options to acquire ordinary shares 
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Joe Fekete  • Non-Executive Independent Director and Company Secretary (retired on 4 
March 2015)  

Experience • He was the Finance Director of J Walter Thompson and Simon Richards 
Group and also worked at Campaign Palace. He has held many roles as CFO 
and most recently was Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer and 
Company Secretary of Altius Mining Limited, which he helped to IPO on 
the ASX. His business management and accounting experience spans over 
20 years in various industries including Advertising, Travel, Wholesale 
Retail distribution, Mining, Construction, and Public Practice. 

Special responsibilities • None 

Directorship of other listed 
entities – in the past 3 years 

• Altius Mining Limited 

Interest in shares and options • 500,000 ordinary shares held by personal and related entities 

Jermaine L Jackson  • Non-executive Independent Director (retired on 14 January 2015) 

Experience • Board member since May 2013. Jermaine is a member of the legendary 
Jackson 5, an icon within the global entertainment industry. 

Special responsibilities • None 

Directorship of other listed 
entities – in the past 3 years 

• None 

Interest in shares and options • None 

Terence S K Tam • Non-Executive Independent Director (appointed on 10 April 2015 and 
retired on 11 August 2015)  

Experience • He has had a distinguished career in telecommunications with a number of 
major telecommunications companies in Asia including Cable and Wireless, 
Hutchison Networks, Star Telecom, and Datatron Ltd. He is currently a 
director of Leadersmart (HK) Ltd, director of Tianditau HK Limited and 
director of Zopo Intelligence Technology (HK) Limited. Terence's 
experience in Telecommunications & IT Industry, covers all areas from 
product development to network operation to setting up business ventures in 
Asia. 

Special responsibilities • None 

Directorship of other listed 
entities – in the past 3 years 

• None 

Interest in shares and options • None 

INFORMATION ON COMPANY SECRETARY 
Eric Pong (appointed on 27 March 2015)

Eric has been involved with accounting, finance and administration of ASX listed public companies 
throughout his career. He is also the Group Accountant of GoConnect Ltd. 
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES 

The principal activities of the Consolidated Entity during the reporting period were: 

• Continue with the development of uctv.fm IPTV. Development and growth of a number of video 
infotainment and entertainment portals with own content production and third party content. 

• Development of the business of Go Green Holdings Group.  

OPERATING RESULTS 
The consolidated operating revenue of GoConnect Limited group (“the Group” or “GoConnect” or “GCN”) 
increased by 191.36% to $280,000 for the financial year compared to $96,103 in the previous year.  
The consolidated operating loss after income tax of the Group increased by 142.66% to $3,394,112 for the 
financial year compared to a loss of $1,398,729 in the previous year. The increased loss for the year was 
mainly due to a non-cash write-off of goodwill asset of $4,336,470 during the first half of the financial year. 

Refer to below Review of Operations for further comments.   

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS 

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

1st half of the 
year 

$ 

2nd half of the 
year 

$ 

Change 

% 

Revenues from continuing operations 9,280 270,720 +2,817%

Total comprehensive Profit (loss) (4,961,834) 1,567,722 +132%

As announced to the ASX on 9 February, 2015, the Board of GoConnect, resolved to let GoConnect Australia 
Pty Ltd (“GoConnect Australia”) to be liquidated rather than converting it to voluntary administration as 
envisaged previously. Accordingly, the business of GoConnect Australia was discontinued and deconsolidated 
as at that date from the Group. Deconsolidation of GoConnect Australia contributed substantially to an 
improved financial position of the Group in the second half of the financial year. Total comprehensive loss 
from the December 2014 half year of $4,961,834 was followed by a gain of $1,567,722 for the second half of 
the financial year, largely derived from reduction in liabilities, representing a 132% improvement between the 
two half years. Revenue between the two halves also showed an improvement of 2,817% contributed by the 
sale of securities in the second half year. 

Liquidation of GoConnect Australia has enabled the Group to focus its full attention on accelerating the 
development of its China business via its associate Go Green Holdings Ltd.  

The differences between what the Company reported for the preliminary results as at 30 June 2015 and that of 
the final audited accounts as at the same date now released, in respect of revenue and asset value, are $486,048 
and $486,048 respectively. These differences are due to delay in reaching final settlement with La Jolla Cove 
Investors Inc, after unexpected and protracted litigation and negotiations. A Settlement Agreement was finally 
signed off on 31 January 2016.  Accordingly, the final audited accounts for the year ended 30 June 2015 now 
released have been adjusted to reverse the effect of settlement at the time of releasing the preliminary 30 June 
2015 results. The full benefits and financial effects of the Settlement Agreement will now be reflected in the 
financial results for the year ended 30 June 2016 instead, estimated to be about $1 million in additional revenue 
and a corresponding improvement to asset value. 
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Go Green Holdings to replace Go Zhongshe Ltd 

The Consolidated Entity announced to the ASX on 24 September 2015 that the majority shareholders of Go 
Zhongshe Ltd, including GoConnect Ltd, have decided to incorporate two new companies in Hong Kong,  Go 
Green Holdings Ltd (to replace Go Zhongshe Ltd) and Go Green Agri Ltd (to replace GZL Agri Ltd) 60% 
owned by Go Green Holdings Ltd.  

The name Go Green is in accordance with China's Central Government policy for the agricultural industry 
being Clean, Green and Organic. More than 50% of Jianshui Vineyard's production is already grown 
organically and eventually all production will be organic. Certification of organic production is to be obtained 
from the Chinese government and will thereafter, improve the selling price of Jianshui table grapes 
domestically by 2 to 3 times compared to that of non-organic grapes which will provide even stronger support 
to Go Green Holdings’ business model.  In addition to converting Jianshui table grapes to 100% organic 
products, Go Green Holdings is continuing to explore for opportunities to add value to the Jianshui table grape 
vineyard as well as to other fresh farm produce within the Jianshui County.  

Incorporating the two new companies, Go Green Holdings Ltd and Go Green Agri Ltd (“Go Green Holdings 
Group”), represents the start of a brand marketing campaign and an expanded business strategy to take 
advantage of China's new policies governing the agricultural industry. These new policies are detailed later on 
in this report.  

On 8 October 2015, Go Green Holdings Ltd entered into an agreement with Yunnan An He Agricultural 
Development Co Ltd ("Yunnan An He") and the Jianshui Table Grapes Farmers' Co-operative for the exclusive 
supply of not less than 95,000 tonnes of high quality black seedless table grapes from the 2016 harvest 
commencing in April 2016. Yunnan An He is a company based in Jianshui County that is involved in the farm 
sector as a grower, marketer, and a provider of value added farm services and technologies. Yunnan An He is 
recommended by the Jianshui Agricultural Trade Development Board as a partner to Go Green Holdings. The 
agreement replaces the previous agreement entered into between Go Zhongshe, Jianshui Agricultural Trade 
Development Board and the Jianshui Table Grapes Farmers' Co-operative. However, the new agreement 
represents a significant improvement on the previous agreement and provides the appropriate basis for tax 
exempt status on Enterprise Profit (25%) and VAT (13%) for Go Green Holdings’ 60% owned subsidiary Go 
Green Agri's business, under the "Company plus Farmers Model" within the Chinese taxation system.  The 
Chinese taxation system provides favourable tax treatment for private enterprises involved in agriculture.  

The shareholding structure of Go Green Holdings Ltd has been changed from that of Go Zhongshe Ltd.  The 
ultimate shareholding of Go Green Holdings Ltd will be 220 million shares with GoConnect's shareholding 
unchanged at 100 million shares of this company.  

Go Green Holdings Group has reached in-principle decision with a major US table grape variety breeding and 
licensing company to introduce their renowned varieties to the Jianshui Vineyard with the objective to 
eventually grow these varieties in Jianshui County and to sell these varieties within China and possibly export 
from China.  

Proposed Stock Exchange Listing of Go Green Holdings and Go Green Agri
The Consolidated Entity is continuing to complete the Offer for the sale of 6 million shares in Go Green 
Holdings (“Go Green Offer”) to facilitate the proposed listing of the company. The Go Green Offer replaces the 
Offer for Go Zhongshe shares as per ASX Announcement made on 11 August 2015, that the Consolidated 
Entity is facilitating the listing of Go Zhongshe Ltd and GZL Agri Ltd, 60% owned by Go Zhongshe Ltd, (“Go 
Zhongshe Group”) by offering 5 million of its 100 million shares in Go Zhongshe Ltd for $5 million. 

On, and subject to, completion of the Go Green Offer, the Consolidated Entity will book a capital gain of about 
$7 million, expected during the 2016/17 financial year. Of the $7 million share sale proceeds, the Consolidated 
Entity will retain about $1.5 million while $5.5 million will be reinvested in the Go Green Holdings Group. 
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The Consolidated Entity has an unrecognised “deferred tax asset” estimated at $22,391,379 which is made up 
of $10,613,264 in operational income tax credit due to the Group entering into a group tax arrangement with 
the ATO in previous years, and $11,778,115 of capital loss tax credit due to the permanent loss of 
approximately $40 million of loan to GoConnect Australia because of its liquidation. These taxable losses have 
not been brought to the accounts of the Group. However, with the commencement in trading of Go Green 
Holdings Group and subject to earnings distribution if any, from Go Green Holdings Group to its shareholders 
including the Consolidated Entity, the deferred tax asset will be realisable from future distribution of Go Green 
Holdings Ltd’s earnings and any capital gain from sale of Go Green Holdings shares by the Consolidated 
Entity. 

The Board of Directors of the Consolidated Entity has resolved to allocate, subject to completion of the Go 
Green Offer, approximately $500,000 of the sale proceeds for distribution to shareholders of the Consolidated 
Entity as a special unfranked dividend at the rate of 0.05 cent per share. Shareholders will be advised of further 
details including timetable of the dividend distribution once the Go Green Offer is completed.  

New Chinese Government policies governing the agricultural industry provide significant benefits to Go 
Green Holdings Group
In early August 2015, four new policies were released by China's Ministry of Agriculture and the Treasury 
Ministry of China to introduce new business opportunities for the agriculture industry. The policies include a 
proposal to support different and larger scales of operation to enhance agricultural development and to improve 
agricultural subsidies to expand food production. Major crop producers, family farms, agricultural co-
operatives, and new business entities like agricultural service organizations are the priorities to be looked after. 

As part of the new policies, China's Treasury Ministry, Ministry of Agriculture and China Banking Regulatory 
Commission jointly issued proposals on financial guarantee to establish agricultural credit guarantee system 
and to improve the credit system to help farmers overcome financing difficulties. The proposals stress that 
credit guarantee services must be provided to business entities involved with food production on a larger scale 
to support their growth and to strengthen their business.  

As increasing attention is given to food safety and environmental pollution, organic farming is receiving 
increasing investor attention. To achieve breakthroughs in agricultural reform, China's Central Government 
plans to establish 300 modern agriculture demonstration/model farms to support increasing use of modern 
agricultural equipment, promoting application of agricultural science and establishing agricultural product 
safety and quality. To develop organic farming, the government will provide land and machinery, and 
substantial capital to support. 

On 11 August 2015, China's Office of the State Council issued pronouncement on further promoting tourism 
investments and consumptions. The pronouncement points out that rural tourism expansion requires better rural 
tourism supporting facilities. By year 2020, the plan is to build more than 6,000 model villages for rural tourism 
all over the country, establish more than 100,000 leisure agricultural and rural tourism featured villages to 
generate annually 2 billion tourist visits. This development is expected to benefit 50 million farmers. 

The Group is proactively working on all of the above matters directly and with its partners and associates. The 
directors are confident that the Group will be successful in the above matters and, together with the completion 
of the capital raising from securities sale, have accordingly prepared the financial report on a going concern 
basis.  
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FUTURE DEVELOPMENT, PROSPECTS AND BUSINESS STRATEGIES 

The Consolidated Entity’s primary corporate objective is to establish the company as a major IPTV media 
company and development of its China business via the Go Green Holdings Group.  

With the restructuring of the Consolidated Entity’s businesses in place, the substantial progress made of the 
business of the Go Green Holdings Group, the Consolidated Entity has derived substantial savings from its 
reorganization of the past 36 months. The restructured Group is now more cost effective, more revenue 
focused, China focused, and is transformed by the substantial asset value and earnings prospects via its holding 
in Go Green Holdings Ltd. 

To improve operating cash flow and maximise shareholder wealth, the Group will focus on the following 
developments in the next 12 months:  

• Expanding the uctv.fm IPTV distribution platforms in conjunction with Go Green Holdings Group;  

• Capitalising on the uctv.fm IPTV network and continue to improve its value by aggregating and 
producing branded entertainment and infotainment content together with Go Green Holdings Group 
with a planned TV show commencing in China; and 

• Assisting Go Green Holdings Group to develop its China businesses in line with recently introduced 
Chinese government policies and initiatives, in agricultural product branding and marketing. 

These developments, together with the current businesses of the Group are expected to deliver a positive cash 
flow and increase enterprise value of the Group. 

FINANCIAL POSITION 
The Group has a net capital deficiency of $4,942,097 as at 30 June 2015, increased by $3,018,612 from net 
capital deficiency of $1,923,485 as at 30 June 2014. The increase was mainly due to a non-cash write-off of 
goodwill asset of $4,336,470 during the first half of the financial year. 

The Consolidated Entity experienced operating losses and negative operating cash flows during the year ended 
30 June 2015. The continuing viability of the Consolidated Entity and its ability to continue as a going concern 
and meet its debts and commitments as they fall due is dependent on it being successful in achieving cash 
inflow from its China based activities. The Directors believe that the Consolidated Entity will be successful in 
the above matters and have prepared the financial report on a going concern basis.  

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN STATE OF AFFAIRS 
There is no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Consolidated Entity during the financial year. 

AFTER BALANCE DATE EVENTS  

We refer you to the projects discussed in the above in the Review of Operations, the announcements made to 
the ASX, and Note 29 Events Occurring After Reporting Date. 

Other than these there has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this 
report any other items, transactions or events of a material and unusual nature which likely, in the opinion of 
the directors of the Consolidated Entity, to significantly affect the operations of the Consolidated Entity, the 
results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Consolidated Entity in subsequent financial years. 

LIKELY DEVELOPMENT AND EXPECTED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

Major projects, including those discussed earlier in this report under Review of Operations, will be 
implemented to establish the Consolidated Entity’s presence in China.
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MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS 

The numbers of meetings of the Company’s board of directors and of each board committee held during the 
year ended 30 June 2015, and the number of meetings attended by each director were: 

Board Meeting Audit Committee Remuneration Committee

A B A B A B 

Richard Li 4 4 0 0 0 0 

Kevin Wong 1 1 * * * * 

Philip Chan  4 4 * * * * 

Joe Fekete 2 2 * * * * 

Jermaine L 
Jackson  

2 2 * * * * 

Terence S K 
Tam 

0 0 * * * * 

A= Number of meetings attended. 

B= Number of meetings held during the time the director held office or was a member of the committee during 
the year. 

*= Not a member of the board or relevant committee at the time of the meeting. 

REMUNERATION REPORT - Audited 

Directors 

The following persons were key management personnel of GoConnect Limited during the financial year: 

Richard Li         Chairman – Executive 

Kevin Wong Executive Director (appointed on 27 March 2015) 

Philip Chan  Non-executive Director 

Joe Fekete Non-executive Director (retired on 5 Mar 2015) 

Jermaine L Jackson  Non-executive Director (retired on 14 January 2015) 

Terence S K Tam Non-executive Director (appointed on 10 April 2015 and retired on 11 August 
2015) 

Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration  
The principal objectives of the Consolidated Entity’s executive reward policies are to ensure reward for 
performance is competitive and appropriate for the results delivered. The policies seek to align reward with the 
achievement of strategic targets and the growth of shareholder value. The criteria being used include 
competitiveness, equitable to shareholders and employees, performance linkage, transparency and capital 
management. The policies provide for a mix of fixed and variable rewards, blended with long term incentives. 

Non-executive directors 
Fees and payments to non-executive directors reflect the demands which are made on, and the responsibilities of 
the directors. Non-executive directors’ fees and payments are reviewed annually by the board. Non-executive 
directors’ fees are determined within an aggregate directors’ fees pool limit currently at $250,000, which is 
periodically recommended for approval by shareholders. 
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REMUNERATION REPORT – Audited (Continued)

Retirement allowances for directors 
The board has not resolved its position on retirement allowances for non-executive directors. 

Executive pay 
The executive pay and reward framework has three components: 
• base pay 
• long term incentives through participation in the GoConnect Employee Option Plan, and 
• other remuneration such as superannuation. 

The combination of these comprises the executive’s total remuneration.  

Base pay 
Structured as a total employment cost package which may be delivered as a mix of cash and prescribed non-
financial benefits at the executives’ discretion. 

There are no guaranteed base pay increases fixed in any senior executives’ contracts. 

Retirement benefits 
Retirement benefits are delivered by contribution to an approved complying superannuation fund nominated by 
the executives. Other retirement benefits may be provided directly by the Consolidated Entity if approved by 
shareholders. 

Service agreements and details of remuneration 
Remuneration and other terms of employment for the executives are formalised in service agreements. These 
agreements provide for base salaries, bonuses at directors’ discretion, superannuation, other benefits, 
participation in the GoConnect Employees Option Plan, and termination procedures. These agreements can be 
terminated by the Consolidated Entity on 3 months’ notice or payment in lieu of notice or a combination of 
both. The agreements may be terminated by the executives on the giving of 3 months’ notice. 

Employment Details of Members of Key Management Personnel 
The following table provides employment details of persons who were, during the financial year, members of 
KMP of the consolidated group.  
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REMUNERATION REPORT – Audited (Continued)

Name Position Held 
as at 30 June 
2015 and any 

Change 
during the 

Year 

Contract Details 
(Duration and 
Termination) 

Proportions of Elements of 
Remuneration Related to 

Performance 

Proportions of Elements of 
Remuneration Not Related to 

Performance 

Non- 
Salary 

Cash-based 
Incentives

Shares Options 
Fixed 

Salary/ Fee
Options Total 

% % % % % % 

Richard Li Chairman – 
Executive 

No fixed term. 3 
months’ notice 

required to terminate. 

- - - 100 100 100 

Kevin Wong Non-executive 
Director 

No fixed term. 3 
months’ notice 

required to terminate. 

- - - 100 100 100 

Philip Chan  Non-executive 
Director 

No fixed term. 3 
months’ notice 

required to terminate. 

- - - 100 100 100 

Joe Fekete Non-executive 
Director (retired 

on 5 Mar 2015) 

No fixed term. 3 
months’ notice 

required to terminate. 

- - - 100 100 100 

Jermaine L 
Jackson  

Non-executive 
Director (retired 

on 14 January 
2015

No fixed term. 3 
months’ notice 

required to terminate. 

- - - 100 100 100 

Terence S K 
Tam 

Non-Executive 
Director (retired 

on 11 August 
2015)

No fixed term. 3 
months’ notice 

required to terminate 

- - - 100 100 100 

Details of the remuneration of each key management personnel, including each director of GoConnect Limited 
and Group executives of the Consolidated Entity, including their personally-related entities, are set out in the 
following tables.

2015 Short-term benefits Post-
employment 

Long-term 
benefits 

Equity 

Name 
Salary, fees 
and leave 

Cash 
bonus 

Non-
monetary 
benefits 

Superannuation LSL Options Total 

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

Richard Li 8,000 - - - - - 8,000 
Kevin Wong1)

6,000 - - - - - 6,000 
Philip Chan  30,000 - - - - - 30,000 

Joe Fekete2) 80,000 - - - - - 80,000 
Jermaine L 
Jackson3) - - - - - - - 
Terence S K 
Tam4) - - - - - - - 

Total 124,000 - - - - - 124,000 
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REMUNERATION REPORT – Audited(Continued)

2014 Short-term benefits Post-
employment 

Long-term 
benefits 

Equity 

Name 
Salary, fees 
and leave 

Cash 
bonus 

Non-
monetary 
benefits 

Superannuation LSL Options Total 

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

Richard Li 120,000 - - 10,800 2,000 87,143 219,943 
Kevin Wong1)

- - - - - - - 
Philip Chan  30,000 - - - - - 30,000 

Joe Fekete2) 70,000 - - - - 4,357 74,357 
Jermaine L 
Jackson3) - - - - - 17,429 17,429 
Terence S K 
Tam4) - - - - - - - 

Total 220,000 - - 10,800 2,000 108,929 341,729 

1) Appointed as director 27 March 2015 

2) Retired as director 5 Mar 2015 

3) Retired as director 14 January 2015 

4) appointed on 10 April 2015 and retired on 11 August 2015 

Options granted

Name 
Balance 
1.7.2014 

Granted as 
compensation

Options 
exercised 

Options 
lapsed 

Other 
Changes 

Balance 
30.6.2015 

Vested and 
exercisable
30.6.2015 

Richard Li 20,000,000 - - - - 20,000,000 20,000,000 

Joe Fekete 500,000 - - (500,000) - - 

Philip Chan 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 1,000,000 
Jermaine L 
Jackson 2,000,000 - - - (2,000,000) - - 

Kevin Wong - - - - 1,000,000* 1,000,000 1,000,000 

Total 23,500,000 - - - (1,500,000) 22,000,000 22,000,000 

Name 
Balance 
1.7.2013 

Granted as 
compensation

Options 
exercised 

Options 
lapsed 

Other 
Changes 

Balance 
30.6.2014 

Vested and 
exercisable
30.6.2014 

Richard Li 10,000,000 10,000,000 - - - 20,000,000 20,000,000 

Joe Fekete - 500,000 - - - 500,000 500,000 

Philip Chan 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 1,000,000 
Jermaine L 
Jackson - 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 2,000,000 

Kevin Wong - - - - - - - 

Total 11,000,000 12,500,000 - - - 23,500,000 23,500,000 

* Kevin Wong received the options in the company prior to being appointed a director on 27 March 2015 
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REMUNERATION REPORT – Audited(Continued)

Name Granted Vested Exercised Lapsed 
Grant 
date 

Value per 
option at 

grant date

Exercise 
price 

First 
exercise 

date 

Last 
exercise 

date 
Number Number Number Number $ $ 

Richard Li 20,000,000 20,000,000 - - 26.2.2014 0.009 0.020 26.2.2014 26.2.2019

Joe Fekete - - - - - - - - -
Jermaine L 
Jackson - - - - - - - - -
Kevin Wong 1,000,000 1,000,000 - - 26.2.2014 0.009 0.020 26.2.2014 26.2.2019

Total 21,000,000 21,000,000 - - 

Description of Options issued 

Details of the options granted to those KMP listed in the previous table are as follows:

Grant 
date 

Issuer 
Entitlement on 

Exercise 
Dates Exercisable

Exercise 
price 

Value per 
option at 

grant date 

Amount Paid/ 
Payable by 
Recipient 

$ $ $ 

26.2.2014 GoConnect Ltd 
1:1 Ordinary Shares 

in GCN 
From vesting date 

to 26.2.2019 0.020 0.009 0.00 

Options are granted to the directors and Group executives as part of their remuneration. The options are not 
issued based on performance criteria for individuals, but are intended to increase goal congruence between 
executives, directors and shareholders. The terms and conditions of each grant of options affecting remuneration 
in this or future reporting periods are as follows: 

These Options were granted under the GoConnect Employee Option Plan and the GoConnect Non-executive 
Directors Option Plan. 

Options were granted under the Plans for no consideration. 

Options granted under the Plans carry no dividend or voting rights. 

When exercisable, each option is convertible into one ordinary share. 
Options granted and vested but not exercised prior to the termination or retirement of a director from office, 
will be cancelled automatically. 

Value was attributed to this reporting period on the options granted above using a Black–Scholes pricing model 
which incorporates all market vesting conditions including: 
• the life, vesting condition, non-transferability, and exercise price of the options, 
• the current price of the underlying shares, 
• the expected volatility of the share price, 
• the dividends that can be expected from the shares, and 
• the risk free interest rate for the life of the options. 
No option holder has any right under the options to participate in any other share issue of the Company or of 
any other entity. 

Shares issued on the Exercise of Compensation Options

During the year and up to date of this report, no share in GoConnect Limited was issued on the exercise of 
options granted as compensation in prior years. 
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REMUNERATION REPORT – Audited(Continued) 

SHAREHOLDINGS 

Number of shares held by Key Management Personnel, including their personal and related entities 

Name 
Balance 
1.7.2014 

Received as 
compensation 

Options 
exercised  

Other changes 
Balance 

30.6.2015 
Richard Li# - - - - - 
Kevin Wong - - - - - 
Philip Chan  - - - - - 

Joe Fekete * 500,000 - - (500,000) - 
Jermaine L 
Jackson - - - - - 
Terence S K Tam - - - - - 

Kevin Wong - - - - - 

# Shares are held by SSI Nominees Pty Ltd, these share are held by SSI Nominees Pty Ltd on behalf of a 
number of GoConnect shareholders. Richard Li does not have any beneficial interest in SSI Nominees Pty 
Ltd nor in any of these shareholders. The shareholding was incorrectly stated in the past. Richard Li 
confirms that other than the options granted to him, he does not hold any GoConnect shares. 
* Joe Fekete retired as director on 5 March 2015.  

Name 
Balance 
1.7.2013 

Received as 
compensation 

Options 
exercised  

Other changes 
Balance 

30.6.2014 

Richard Li# - - - - - 

Joe Fekete - - - 500,000 500,000 

Philip Chan - - - - - 
Jermaine L 
Jackson - - - - - 

Paul Wiltshire+ 3,174,440 - - (3,174,440) - 

+ Paul Wiltshire resigned as a director effective on 30 September 2014. 

INSURANCE OF OFFICERS 

The Consolidated Entity as at 30th June 2015 does not maintain a directors’ and officers’ insurance policy for 
the benefit of the directors and executive officers of the Consolidated Entity. The Board is looking to reinstate 
the insurance policy in the 2015/16 financial year which will grant indemnity against liabilities permitted to be 
indemnified by the Consolidated Entity under Section 199B of the Corporations Act 2001. 

DIVIDENDS PAID OR RECOMMENDED 

The Directors do not recommend the declaration of any dividend for the year ended 30 June 2015. 

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION 
The operations of the Consolidated Entity are not subject to any particular and significant environmental 
regulation. 
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PROCEEDINGS ON BEHALF OF THE COMPANY 
Other than what has been disclosed of business of a material nature in the section under Contingent Assets and 
Liabilities, and Events occurring after reporting date, no person has applied to the Court for leave to bring 
proceedings on behalf of the Company, or to intervene in any proceedings to which the Company is a party, for 
the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the Company for all or part of those proceedings. 

No proceedings have been brought or intervened in on behalf of the Company with leave of the Court. 

NON-AUDIT SERVICES 

There is no non-audit service provided by the auditors during the financial year. 

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION 

The auditors’ independence declaration for the year ended 30 June 2015 has been received and can be found on 
page 22. 

This report is made in accordance with a resolution of the board of directors of the Company. 

RICHARD LI

CHAIRMAN 

Dated at Melbourne this 12th day of April 2016. 
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THE POWER OF BEING UNDERSTOOD
AUDIT | TAX | CONSULTING
RSM Australia Partners is a member of the RSM network and trades as RSM.  RSM is the trading name used by the members of the RSM network.  Each member of the 
RSM network is an independent accounting and consulting firm which practices in its own right.  The RSM network is not itself a separate legal entity in any jurisdiction. 

RSM Australia Partners ABN 36 965 185 036

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION 

As lead auditor for the audit of the financial report of GoConnect Limited for the year ended 30 June 2015, 
I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of: 

(i) the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; 
and 

(ii) any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit. 

RSM AUSTRALIA PARTNERS

J S CROALL 
Partner 

Melbourne, VIC 

12 April 2016 
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The financial report covers both GoConnect Limited as an individual entity and 
the consolidated entity consisting of GoConnect Limited and its controlled 
entities. 

GoConnect Limited is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled 
in Australia. Its registered office and principal place of business is: 

GoConnect Limited 
1st Floor, 951 Nepean Hwy 
Bentleigh VIC 3204 
Australia 

A description of the nature of the consolidated entity’s operations and its 
principal activities is included in the directors’ report on pages 9-21.
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Consolidated Group 

Notes 2015

$

2014

$

Continuing operations 

Revenue 3 280,000 96,103

Virtual Internet Service network operating costs (9,637) -

Employee benefits expense  (117,566) (259,000)

Depreciation and amortisation expenses - (27,036)

Finance costs  (100,243) (199,116)

Impairment and write off assets (4,365,098) -

Office rent expense (109,698) (226,515)

Other expenses (659,069) (122,395)

Share of net loss of associates 13 - -

Loss before income tax  (5,081,311) (737,959)

Income tax expense 6 - -

Loss from continuing operations 4 (5,081,311) (737,959)

Discontinued operations 

Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations 30 1,687,199 (660,770)

Other comprehensive income - -

Net loss for the year (3,394,112) (1,398,729)

Loss attributable to: 

Members of the parent entity (3,394,112) (1,398,729)

Non-controlling interest - -

(3,394,112) (1,398,729)

Total comprehensive loss attributable to: 

Members of the parent entity (3,394,112) (1,398,729)

Non-controlling interest - -

(3,394,112) (1,398,729)

Loss per share 

From continuing and discontinued operations: 
Basic loss per share (cents) 7 (0.3) (0.1)

Diluted loss per share (cents) 7 (0.3) (0.1)

From continuing operations: 

Basic loss per share (cents) 7 (0.5) (0.1)

Diluted loss per share (cents) 7 (0.5) (0.1)

From discontinued operations: 

Basic loss per share (cents) 7 0.2 (0.1)

Diluted loss per share (cents) 7 0.2 (0.1)

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Group

Notes 2015 

$
2014               

$

ASSETS 

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 8 - 159

Trade and other receivables 9 - 296,018

Other financial asset 11 - 20

Total current assets - 296,197

Non-current assets 

Plant and equipment 12 - 5,152

Investments accounted for using the equity method 13 200 40

Intangible assets 14 - 4,336,471

Total non-current assets 200 4,341,663

Total assets 200 4,637,860

LIABILITIES 

Current liabilities 

Trade and other payables 15 2,948,266 4,781,664

Borrowings 16 962,669 -

Short-term provisions 17 - 66,330

Total current liabilities 3,910,935 4,847,994

Non-current liabilities 

Borrowings 16 1,031,362 1,710,123

Long-term provisions 17 - 3,228

Total non-current liabilities 1,031,362 1,713,351

Total liabilities 4,942,297 6,561,345

Net assets (liabilities) (4,942,097) (1,923,485)

EQUITY 

Issued capital 18(A) 45,441,170 45,041,170

Reserves 28 772,000 772,000

Accumulated losses (51,155,267) (47,761,155)

Parent interest (4,942,097) (1,947,985)

Non-controlling interest - 24,500

Total equity (4,942,097) (1,923,485)

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Group 

Notes Share 
Capital

Ordinary
Accumulated 

Losses
Option 

Reserve

Asset 
Revaluation 

Reserve

Non-
controlling 

interests Total

$ $ $ $ $ $

Balance at 1 July 2013 45,041,170 (46,362,426) 650,000 - 24,500 (646,756) 

Loss for the year - (1,398,729) - - - (1,398,729) 

Other comprehensive 
income for the year - - - - - -

Total comprehensive 
income for the year - (1,398,729) - - - (1,398,729) 

Transactions with 
owners, recorded 
directly in equity 

Recognition of share 
based remuneration - - 122,000 - - 122,000 

Total transactions with 
owners - - 122,000 - - 122,000 

Balance at 30 June 
2014 45,041,170 (47,761,155) 772,000 - 24,500 (1,923,485) 

Balance at 1 July 2014 45,041,170 (47,761,155) 772,000 - 24,500 (1,923,485) 

Loss for the year - (3,394,112) - - - (3,394,112) 

Other comprehensive 
income for the year - - - - - - 

Total comprehensive 
income for the year - (3,394,112) - - - (3,394,112) 

Transactions with 
owners, recorded 
directly in equity 
Shares issued during the 
year 400,000 - - - - 400,000 
De-consolidation of First 
Mongolian Marketing 
Ltd from loss of control  - - - - (24,500) (24,500) 

Total transactions with 
owners 400,000 - - - (24,500) 375,500 

Balance at 30 June 
2015 45,441,170 (51,155,267) 772,000 - - (4,942,097) 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Group

Notes 2015 

$

2014          

     $

Cash flows from operating activities 

Receipts from customers - 220,682

Payments to suppliers and employees  (808,908) (852,526)

Net cash used in operating activities 19(B) (808,908) (631,844)

Cash flows from investing activities 

Proceeds from disposal of equity investments 125,000 -

Loans to related entities - (411)

Net cash used in investing activities 125,000 (411)

Cash flows from financing activities 

Proceeds from issue of shares 400,000 -

Proceeds from borrowings 283,908 631,088

Net cash provided by financing activities 683,908 631,088

Net increase (decrease) in cash held (159) (756)

Cash at beginning of financial year 159 915

Cash at end of financial year 19(A) - 159

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015 

GOCONNECT LIMITED ACN 0 8 9  2 4 0  3 5 3 AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES 

28

These consolidated financial statements and notes represent those of GoConnect Limited and controlled entities 
(‘Consolidated Group’ or ‘Group’). 

The separate financial statements of the parent entity, GoConnect Limited, have not been presented within this 
financial report as permitted by the Corporations Act 2001. 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basic of preparation 

The financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with 
Australian Accounting Standards, Australian Accounting Interpretations; other authoritative 
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and the Corporations Act 2001.  

The Group is a for-profit entity for financial reporting under Australian Accounting Standards. 

Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the AASB has concluded would result in 
a financial report containing relevant and reliable information about transactions, events and conditions. 
Compliance with Australian Accounting Standards ensures that the financial statements and notes also 
comply with International Financial Reporting Standards.  Material accounting policies adopted in the 
preparation of this financial report are presented below and have been consistently applied unless 
otherwise stated. 

The financial report has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historical costs, modified, 
where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and 
financial liabilities. 

(a) Principles of Consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities and results of entities 
controlled by GoConnect Limited at the end of the reporting period. A controlled entity is any entity 
over which GoConnect Limited has the power to govern the financial and operating policies so as to 
obtain benefits from the entity’s activities. Control will generally exist when the parent owns, directly 
or indirectly through subsidiaries, more than half of the voting power of an entity. In assessing the 
power to govern, the existence and effect of holdings of actual and potential voting rights are also 
considered.  

Where controlled entities have entered or left the Group during the year, the financial performance of 
those entities are included only for the period of the year that they were controlled. A list of 
controlled entities is contained in Note 26 to the financial statements.   

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, all inter-group balances and transactions between 
entities in the consolidated group have been eliminated on consolidation. Accounting policies of 
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with those adopted by the 
parent entity. 

Non-controlling interests, being the equity in a subsidiary not attributable, directly or indirectly, to a 
parent, are shown separately within the Equity section of the consolidated Statement of Financial 
Position and Statement of Comprehensive Income. The non-controlling interests in the net assets 
comprise their interests at the date of the original business combination and their share of changes in 
equity since that date. 

Business Combinations 

Business combinations occur where an acquirer obtains control over one or more businesses. 

A business combination is accounted for by applying the acquisition method, unless it is a 
combination involving entities or businesses under common control. The business combination will 
be accounted for from the date that control is attained, whereby the fair value of the identifiable 
assets acquired and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) assumed is recognised (subject to 
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certain limited exemptions). 

When measuring the consideration transferred in the business combination, any asset or liability 
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement is also included. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, contingent consideration classified as equity is not remeasured and its subsequent 
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability 
is remeasured each reporting period to fair value, recognising any change to fair value in profit or 
loss, unless the change in value can be identified as existing at acquisition date. 

All transaction costs incurred in relation to the business combination are expensed to the statement of 
comprehensive income. 

The acquisition of a business may result in the recognition of goodwill or a gain from a bargain 
purchase. 

Goodwill 

Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is calculated as the excess 
of the sum of: 
1. the consideration transferred; 
2. any non-controlling interest; and 
3. the acquisition date fair value of any previously held equity interest; 

Over the acquisition date fair value of net identifiable assets acquired. 

The acquisition date fair value of the consideration transferred for a business combination plus the 
acquisition date fair value of any previously held equity interest shall form the cost of the investment 
in the separate financial statements. 

Fair value uplifts in the value of pre-existing equity holdings are taken to the statement of 
comprehensive income. Where changes in the value of such equity holdings had previously been 
recognised in other comprehensive income, such amounts are recycled to profit or loss. 

The amount of goodwill recognised on acquisition of each subsidiary in which the Group holds less 
than a 100% interest will depend on the method adopted in measuring the non-controlling interest. 
The Group can elect in most circumstances to measure the non-controlling interest in the acquiree 
either at fair value (full goodwill method) or at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of 
the subsidiary's identifiable net assets (proportionate interest method). In such circumstances, the 
Group determines which method to adopt for each acquisition and this is stated in the respective 
notes to these financial statements disclosing the business combination. 

Under the full goodwill method, the fair value of the non-controlling interest is determined using 
valuation techniques which make the maximum use of market information where available. Under 
this method, goodwill attributable to the non-controlling interests is recognised in the consolidated 
financial statements. 

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisition of 
associates is included in investments in associates. 

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and is allocated to the Group's cash-generating units or 
groups of cash-generating units, representing the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored not 
larger than an operating segment. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying 
amount of goodwill related to the entity disposed of. 

Changes in the ownership interests in a subsidiary are accounted for as equity transactions and do not 
affect the carrying values of goodwill. 
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(b) Income tax 

The income tax expense (revenue) for the year comprises current income tax expense (income) and 
deferred tax expense (income). 

Current income tax expense charged to profit or loss is the tax payable on taxable income. Current 
tax liabilities (assets) are measured at the amounts expected to be paid to (recovered from) the 
relevant taxation authority. 

Deferred income tax expense reflects movements in deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability 
balances during the year as well unused tax losses. 

Current and deferred income tax expense (income) is charged or credited outside profit or loss when 
the tax relates to items that are recognised outside profit or loss. 

Except for business combinations, no deferred income tax is recognised from the initial recognition 
of an asset or liability, where there is no effect on accounting or taxable profit or loss. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the 
period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled and their measurement also reflects the 
manner in which management expects to recover or settle the carrying amount of the related asset or 
liability. 

Deferred tax assets relating to temporary differences and unused tax losses are recognised only to the 
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the benefits of the 
deferred tax asset can be utilised. 

Where temporary differences exist in relation to investments in subsidiaries, branches, associates, and 
joint ventures, deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised where the timing of the reversal of 
the temporary difference can be controlled and it is not probable that the reversal will occur in the 
foreseeable future. 
Current tax assets and liabilities are offset where a legally enforceable right of set-off exists and it is 
intended that net settlement or simultaneous realisation and settlement of the respective asset and 
liability will occur.  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where: (a) a legally enforceable 
right of set-off exists; and (b) the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by 
the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities where it is 
intended that net settlement or simultaneous realisation and settlement of the respective asset and 
liability will occur in future periods in which significant amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities 
are expected to be recovered or settled. 

Tax Consolidation 
GoConnect Limited and its wholly-owned subsidiaries other than Uctv.fm Pty Ltd, Asia IPTV Pty 
Ltd and EcoConnect Australia Pty Ltd have formed an income tax consolidated entity under tax 
consolidation legislation. Each entity in the tax consolidated entity recognises its own current and 
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Such taxes are measured using the ‘stand-alone taxpayer’ approach 
to allocation. Current tax liabilities (assets) and deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and 
tax credits in the subsidiaries are immediately transferred to the head entity. The Group notified the 
Australian Tax Office that it had formed an income tax consolidated entity to apply from 1 July 2003. 
The tax consolidated entity has entered a tax funding arrangement whereby each company in the tax 
consolidated entity contributes to the income tax payable by the Group in proportion to their 
contribution to the Group’s taxable income. Differences between the amounts of net tax assets and 
liabilities derecognised and the net amounts recognised pursuant to the funding arrangement are 
recognised as either a contribution by, or distribution to the head entity.  
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(c) Property, plant and equipment  

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost as indicated less, where applicable, any 
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 

Plant and equipment 

Plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis. 

The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed annually by directors to ensure it is not in 
excess of the recoverable amount from these assets.  The recoverable amount is assessed on the 
basis of the expected net cash flows that will be received from the asset’s employment and 
subsequent disposal.  The expected net cash flows have been discounted to their present values in 
determining recoverable amounts. 

Depreciation 

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the asset’s 
useful life to the consolidated group commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use.  

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are: 

Office and computer equipment  20 – 50%  

Furniture and fittings 12.5 – 13%  

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of 
each reporting period. 

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's 
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount.  
These gains and losses are included in the statement of comprehensive income. 

(d) Leases 

Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with the 
lessor, are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.  

Lease incentives under operating leases are recognised as a liability and amortised on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term. 

(e) Financial instruments 

Recognition and Initial Measurement 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the entity becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions to the instrument. For financial assets, this is equivalent to the date that the 
company commits itself to either the purchase or sale of the asset (i.e. trade date accounting is 
adopted).  

Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except where the 
instrument is classified ‘at fair value through profit or loss’, in which case transaction costs are 
expensed to profit or loss immediately. 

Classification and Subsequent Measurement 

Finance instruments are subsequently measured at either of fair value, amortised cost using the 
effective interest rate method, or cost.   

Amortised cost is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial 
recognition less principal repayments and any reduction for impairment, and adjusted for any 
cumulative amortisation of the difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount 
calculated using the effective interest method. 
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Fair value is determined based on current bid prices for all quoted investments. Valuation techniques 
are applied to determine the fair value for all unlisted securities, including recent arm’s length 
transactions, reference to similar instruments and option pricing models. 

The effective interest method is used to allocate interest income or interest expense over the relevant 
period and is equivalent to the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts 
(including fees, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life (or 
when this cannot be reliably predicted, the contractual term) of the financial instrument to the net 
carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. Revisions to expected future net cash 
flows will necessitate an adjustment to the carrying value with a consequential recognition of an 
income or expense item in profit or loss. 

The Group does not designate any interests in subsidiaries, associates or joint venture entities as 
being subject to the requirements of Accounting Standards specifically applicable to financial 
instruments. 

i. Loans and receivables 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments that are not quoted in an active market and are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost. 

Loans and receivables are included in current assets, except for those which are not 
expected to mature within 12 months after the end of the reporting period. (All other loans 
and receivables are classified as non-current assets.) 

ii. Financial liabilities 

Non-derivative financial liabilities (excluding financial guarantees) are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost. 

Impairment 

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial 
instrument has been impaired. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive 
income. 

Derecognition 

Financial assets are derecognised where the contractual rights to receipt of cash flows expires or the 
asset is transferred to another party whereby the entity no longer has any significant continuing 
involvement in the risks and benefits associated with the asset.  Financial liabilities are 
derecognised where the related obligations are either discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference 
between the carrying value of the financial liability extinguished or transferred to another party and 
the fair value of consideration paid, including the transfer of non-cash assets or liabilities assumed, is 
recognised in profit or loss. 

(f) Impairment of assets 

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses whether there is any indication that an asset 
may be impaired. The assessment will include the consideration of external and internal sources of 
information including dividends received from subsidiaries, associate or jointly controlled entities 
deemed to be out of pre-acquisition profits. If such an indication exists, an impairment test is carried 
out on the asset by comparing the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset’s fair 
value less costs to sell and value in use, to the asset’s carrying value. Any excess of the asset’s 
carrying value over its recoverable amount is expensed to the statement of comprehensive income. 

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group 
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

Impairment testing is performed annually for goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives. 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015 

GOCONNECT LIMITED ACN 0 8 9  2 4 0  3 5 3 AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES 

33

(g) Investment in associate 

Associate companies are companies in which the Group has significant influence through holding, 
directly or indirectly, 20% or more of the voting power of the company. Investments in associates are 
accounted for in the financial statements by applying the equity method of accounting whereby the 
investment is initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition change in the 
Group’s share of net assets of the associate company. In addition the Group’s share of the profit or 
loss of the associate company is included in the Group’s profit or loss.  

The carrying amount of the investment includes goodwill relating to the associate. Any excess of the 
Group’s share of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent 
liabilities over the cost of the investment is excluded from the carrying amount of the investment and 
is instead included as income in the determination of the investor’s share of the associate’s profit or 
loss in the period in which the investment is acquired. 

Profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate are eliminated to 
the extent of the relation to the Group’s investment in the associate. 

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, the 
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses unless it has incurred legal or constructive 
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. When the associate subsequently makes 
profits, the Group will resume recognising its share of those profits once its share of the profits 
equals the share of the losses not recognised. 

Details of the Group’s investments in associates are shown at Note 13. 

(h) Intangible assets  

Research and development and software  

Expenditure during the research phase of a project is recognised as an expense when incurred.  
Development costs are capitalised only when technical feasibility studies identify that the project will 
deliver future economic benefits and these benefits can be measured reliably. 

Development costs have a finite life and are amortised on a systematic basis matched to the future 
economic benefits over the useful life of the project. 

Management Contracts and Recording Agreements 

AASB138 prescribes treatment of Intangible Assets that are not dealt with specifically in other 
standards.  

AASB3 requires intangible assets acquired in a business combination other than goodwill to be 
measured at its fair value at the acquisition date. The fair value of intangible assets is estimated by 
discounting estimated future net cash flows from the asset.  

After initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at its cost less any accumulated amortisation 
and any accumulated impairment losses. 

Management Contracts and Recording Agreements have finite useful lives ranging from 3-5 years. 
The depreciable amounts of the contracts and agreements are allocated on a straight-line basis over 
their useful lives and calculated annually. 

(i) Foreign currency transactions and balances 

Transactions and balances 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency using the exchange rates 
prevailing at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency monetary items are translated at the year-
end exchange rate. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost continue to be carried at the 
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exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value are reported 
at the exchange rate at the date when fair values were determined. 

Exchange differences arising on the translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss, 
except where deferred in equity as a qualifying cash flow or net investment hedge. 

(j) Employee benefits 

Provision is made for the company’s liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by 
employees to balance date. Employee benefits that are expected to be settled within one year have 
been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled. Employee benefits 
payable later than one year have been measured at the present value of the estimated future cash 
outflows to be made for those benefits. In determining the liability, consideration is given to 
employee wage increases and the probability that the employee may satisfy vesting requirement. 
Those cash flows are discounted using market yields on national government bonds with terms to 
maturity that match the expected timing of cash flows. 

Equity-settled compensation 

The Group operates equity-settled share-based payment employee share and option schemes.  The 
fair value of the equity to which employees become entitled is measured at grant date and recognised 
as an expense over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase to an equity account.  The fair 
value of shares is ascertained as the market bid price. The fair value of options is ascertained using a 
Black–Scholes pricing model which incorporates all market vesting conditions.  The number of 
shares and options expected to vest is reviewed and adjusted at the end of each reporting date such 
that the amount recognised for services received as consideration for the equity instruments granted 
shall be based on the number of equity instruments that eventually vest. 

(k) Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past 
events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can 
be reliably measured. 

Provisions are measured using the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation at the 
end of the reporting period. 

(l) Revenue recognition 

(i) Revenues derived from the provision of advertisements in the form of audio/video commercials 
and banners on the Company's various free WiFi, online, and IPTV platforms are recognized 
either on the time basis or based on varying price per thousand advertising impressions each 
advertisement is received by the end users over the period that the impressions are published.

(ii) Commission income derived from e-commerce transactions is recognized on the basis of 
successful conclusion of e-commerce transactions. 

(iii) Revenues received in advance from the provision of advertisements over multiple periods are 
initially recognised as deferred income and are recognised as revenue over the periods in which 
the advertisement impressions are published.  

(iv) Subscriptions for the Pay ISP are recognised as services are rendered. 
(v) Research and Development tax offset rebate is recognised as Research and Development 

government grant when received. 
(vi) Interest revenue is recognised on a proportional basis taking into account the interest rate 

applicable to the financial assets. 
(vii) Music production revenue is recognised at the point of completion of production. 
(viii) Music sale revenue is recognised at the point of delivery to customers.  
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(ix) Artist management commission revenue is recognised when Artist’s income is received. 

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST) 

(m) Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of assets that 
necessarily take a substantial period of time to prepare for their intended use or sale, are added to the 
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. 

All other borrowing costs are recognised in income in the period in which they are incurred. 

(n) Goods and Services Tax (GST) 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of 
GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).   

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net 
amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included with other receivables or 
payables in the statement of financial position. 

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing 
or financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are presented as operating 
cash flows included in receipts from customers or payments to suppliers. 

(o) Comparative figures 

Where required by accounting standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to 
changes in presentation for the current financial year. 

When the Group applies an accounting policy retrospectively, makes a retrospective restatement or 
reclassifies items in its financial statements, a statement of financial position as at the beginning of 
the earliest comparative period will be disclosed.  

(p) Going concern 

The Company and Consolidated Entity experienced losses of $675,483 (2014: $1,761,671 loss) and 
$3,394,112 (2014: $1,398,729 loss) during the financial year ended 30 June 2015, respectively.  The 
Consolidated Entity experienced operating cash outflows of $808,908 (2014: $631,844 outflow) 
during the financial year ended 30 June 2015.  Furthermore, at 30 June 2015 the Consolidated Entity 
had:  

• cash balances of $nil (2014: $159);  

• net current liabilities of $3,910,935 (2014: $4,551,797); and  

• net tangible liabilities of $4,942,097 (2014: $6,259,956).   

Further, the continuing viability of the Company and the Consolidated Entity are subject to the 
Company being successful in: 

- Appealing the Supreme Court decision regarding the current repayment terms of the loan 
payable to Sino Strategic International Ltd (in liquidation) (“SSI”) of $1.6 million (“the SSI 
Case”); and 

- Satisfying the settlement deed with La Jolla Cove (“LJC”) by converting the value of 4 
million Priority One Network Group Ltd (“Priority One”) shares to discharge the liability 
owed to LJC of US$700,000.  Once this has settled the Company will be left with 3.6 
million Priority One shares. 
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Both of the above matters have been disclosed in further detail in Note 29 Events Occurring after 
Reporting Date.  In the event that the Company is unsuccessful in either of the above matters, 
notwithstanding the potential for further sales of GGH shares to raise settlement funds, and should 
additional funding not be available from either capital raisings or external financing arrangements, 
there would be a significant uncertainty as to whether the Company and Consolidated Entity will be 
able to continue as going concerns and therefore whether they will realise their assets and extinguish 
their liabilities in the normal course of business and at the amounts stated in the financial report. 

The Directors, however, believe that there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company and 
Consolidated Entity will be able to continue as going concerns, after consideration of the following 
factors:  

- The Company has realised sale proceeds, for cash, as at the date of this report of $670,000 
from Go Green Holdings Ltd (“GGH”) shares.  An additional $829,052 of GGH shares have 
been agreed to be exchanged for payment of liabilities owed by the Company, bringing the 
total value of GGH shares sold by the Company to $1,499,052.  5 million shares in GGH are 
currently on offer to realize $6.5 million. 

- The Company is facilitating the listing of GGH on an Australian stock exchange by offering 
part of the Company’s 100 million shares in GGH to professional investors.  The sale 
proceeds will add to working capital of the Company and GGH. Following the GGH share 
sale, the Company will still hold 94 million GGH shares of substantial value. 

- The Company is assisting GGH to develop its China businesses in line with recently 
introduced Chinese government policies and initiatives, in agricultural product branding and 
marketing in China. 

- The Company is expanding the uctv.fm IPTV distribution platforms in conjunction with 
GGH.  It is capitalising on the uctv.fm IPTV network to continue to improve its value by 
aggregating and producing branded entertainment and infotainment content together with 
GGH with a TV show franchise commencing in China. 

- The Company and Consolidated Entity are able to draw down on an unused credit facility of 
$468,638 from a related entity, Sino Investment Services Pty Ltd (“SISL”) as at balance date. 
The ability for SISL to provide the unused credit facility is contingent on the value of its 
investments and the ability for the value of these shares to be realised. 

- Supported by legal advice, the Company believes it has strong legal grounds for a successful 
appeal against the decision of the SSI Case. Documentations are being prepared appealing 
against this decision. The appeal process commences upon the Company filing the appeal 
documents at the registry in the Supreme Court. 

- The company has 3.6 million Priority One shares on hand following the settlement with La 
Jolla Cove. Priority One is in the process of listing on the Australian Securities Exchange.  
Once Priority One has listed the Company will look to dispose of its remaining shares in an 
orderly manner so as to improve its cash position.  Should the listing not be successful the 
Company will look to continue to dispose of its Priority One shareholdings through off 
market transfers, as it has done to date, so as to help extinguish liabilities and/or inject 
further cash into the business. 
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The Directors are proactively working on all of the above matters directly, and with its partners.   
Accordingly, the Directors believe that the company and consolidated entity will be able to continue 
as going concerns and that it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in the preparation of the 
financial report. 

The financial report does not include any adjustments relating to the amounts or classification of 
recorded assets or liabilities that might be necessary if the Company and Consolidated Entity do not 
continue as going concerns. 

(q) Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments 
The group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting 
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions 
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below. 

(i)  Estimated impairment of goodwill 

The group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment, in accordance with the 
accounting policy stated in note 1(a) and 1(f). The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units 
have been determined based on fair value less cost and value-in-use calculations. These 
calculations require the use of assumptions. 

Refer to note 14 for details of these assumptions and the potential impact of changes to the 
assumptions. 

(r) New standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective 

At the date of this financial report the following standards and interpretations, which may impact the 
entity in the period of initial application, have been issued but are not yet effective: 

Reference Title Summary Application date 
(financial years 

beginning) 
AASB 
2014-3 

Amendments to 
Australian Accounting 
Standards – 
Accounting for 
Acquisitions of 
Interests in Joint 
Operations 

This Standard amends AASB 11 to 
provide guidance on the accounting for 
acquisitions of interests in joint 
operations in which the activity 
constitutes a business. 

1 January 2016 

AASB 
2014-4 

Amendments to 
Australian Accounting 
Standards – 
Clarification of 
Acceptable Methods of 
Depreciation and 
Amortisation 

This Standard amends AASB 116 and 
AASB 138 to establish the principle for 
the basis of depreciation and 
amortisation as being the expected 
pattern of consumption of the future 
economic benefits of an asset, and to 
clarify that revenue is generally 
presumed to be an inappropriate basis 
for that purpose. 

1 January 2016 

AASB 
2014-9 

Amendments to 
Australian Accounting 
Standards – Equity 

This amending standard allows entities 
to use the equity method of accounting 
for investments in subsidiaries, joint 

1 January 2016 
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Method in Separate 
Financial Statements 

ventures and associates in their 
separate financial statements. 

AASB 
2014-10 

Amendments to 
Australian Accounting 
Standards – Sale or 
Contribution of Assets 
between an Investor 
and its Associate or 
Joint Venture 

This amending standard requires a full 
gain or loss to be recognised when a 
transaction involves a business (even if 
the business is not housed in a 
subsidiary), and a partial gain or loss to 
be recognised when a transaction 
involves assets that do not constitute a 
business (even if those assets are 
housed in a subsidiary). 

1 January 2016 

AASB 
2015-1 

Amendments to 
Australian Accounting 
Standards – Annual 
Improvements to 
Australian Accounting 
Standards 2012-2014 
Cycle 

The Standard makes amendments to 
various Australian Accounting 
Standards arising from the IASB’s 
Annual Improvements process, and 
editorial corrections. 

1 January 2016 

AASB 
2015-2 

Amendments to 
Australian Accounting 
Standards –Disclosure 
Initiative: Amendments 
to AASB 101 

The Standard makes amendments to 
AASB 101 Presentation of Financial 
Statements arising from the IASB’s 
Disclosure Initiative project. 

1 January 2016 

AASB 
2015-5 

Amendments to 
Australian Accounting 
Standards –Investment 
Entities: Applying the 
Consolidation 
Exception 

This Standard makes amendments to 
AASB 10, AASB 12 and AASB 128 
arising from the IASB’s narrow scope 
amendments associated with 
Investment Entities. 

1 January 2016 

AASB 15 Revenue from 
Contracts with 
Customers 

This Standard establishes principles 
(including disclosure requirements) for 
reporting useful information about the 
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2. PARENT INFORMATION

2015 2014

$ $

The following information has been extracted from the books and 
records of the parent and has been prepared in accordance with 
Accounting Standards.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS

Current assets - 110,438

Non-Current assets 2,778,712 1,879,389

Total assets 2,778,712 1,989,827

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities 3,910,972 2,915,297

Non-Current liabilities 1,031,374 962,682

Total liabilities 4,942,346 3,877,979

EQUITY

Issued capital 45,441,170 45,041,170

Reserves 772,000 772,000

Accumulated loss (48,376,805) (47,701,322)

Total equity (2,163,635) (1,888,152)

Total equity (capital deficiency)STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Total loss (675,483) (1,761,671)

Total comprehensive loss (675,483) (1,761,671)

3. REVENUE 

Consolidated Group

Note 2015 2014

$ $

Music production and artist management - 18,750

Advertising sales and commissions - 77,353

Proceed from sale of investment 280,000 -

280,000 96,103
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4. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 

Consolidated Group 

Note 2015 2014

Loss before income tax from continuing operations includes 
the following specific expenses:

$ $

Expenses 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment - 27,036 

Amortisation of intangible assets 4,365,098 - 

Rental expense relating to operating leases 109,698 226,515 

Finance costs 100,243 199,118 

Legal fee and disbursement 28,089 11,899 

Share based remuneration - 122,000 

5. AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION 

Remuneration for audit or review of the financial reports of the 
Parent Entity or any entity in the Consolidated Entity: 33,480 48,180 

6. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 

(A) The prima facie tax (credit) on profit (loss) before income 
tax is reconciled to the income tax (credit) as follows:

Prima facie tax payable (credit provided) on profit (loss) 
from continuing operations before income tax at 30% (2014: 
30%)
- Consolidated Entity (1,524,393) (522,937) 

Tax effect of  

- Deferred tax asset not brought to account 1,524,393 522,937 

      Income tax attributable to the entity - - 

The applicable weighted average effective tax rates are as 
follows:

0% 0% 

(B)The directors estimate that the potential deferred tax asset 
at balance date in respect of tax losses not brought to 
account is: 22,391,379 10,389,812 
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7. LOSS PER SHARE 

Consolidated Group 

Note 2015 2014

Number Number
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used as the 
denominator in calculating basic and diluted loss per share 991,883,996 960,817,263 

As at 30 June 2015, 24,500,000 (2014: 27,000,000) options were on issue. None of these options are 
considered dilutive. 

8. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Consolidated Group 

Note 2015 2014

$ $

Cash at bank and in hand - 159 

The weighted effective rate on cash at bank 0% 0% 

9. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Consolidated Group 

Note 2015 2014

$ $

CURRENT

Trade receivables - 282,233

Provision for impairment 9a(i) - (1,642)

- 280,592

Other receivables - 15,426

Amounts receivable from associated companies 56,210 74,785

Provision for impairment from associated companies 9a(ii) (56,210) (74,785)

GST clearing account - -

Total current trade and other receivables - 296,018
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9. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Provision For Impairment of Receivables 
Current trade and term receivables are non-interest bearing loans and generally on 30 day terms. Non-
current trade and term receivables are assessed for recoverability based on the underlying terms of the 
contract. A provision for impairment is recognised when there is objective evidence that an individual trade 
or term receivable is impaired.  These amounts have been included in the other expenses item. 
Movement in the provision for impairment of receivables is as follows: 

Consolidated Group 

Note 2015 2014

$ $

a(i) Provision for current trade receivables

Opening balance at beginning of year 1,642 8,824 

Charge for the year  -  1,642 

Amounts written off (1,642)  (8,824) 

Closing balance at end of year - 1,642 

a(ii) Provision for amounts receivable from associated companies

Opening balance at beginning of year 74,785 65,898 

Amounts written off from deconsolidation (18,575) - 

Charge for the year - 8,887 

Closing balance at end of year 56,210 74,785 

Credit Risk — Trade and Other Receivables 
The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk with respect to any single counter party or group 
of counter parties other than those receivables specifically provided for and mentioned within Note 9. The 
class of assets described as Trade and other receivables is considered to be the main source of credit risk 
related to the Group. 
On a geographical basis, the Group has significant credit risk exposures in Australia only. 
The following table details the Group’s trade and other receivables exposed to credit risk (prior to collateral 
and other credit enhancements) with ageing analysis and impairment provided for thereon. Amounts are 
considered as ‘past due’ when the debt has not been settled, with the terms and conditions agreed between 
the Group and the customer or counter party to the transaction.  Receivables that are past due are assessed 
for impairment by ascertaining solvency of the debtors and are provided for where there are specific 
circumstances indicating that the debt may not be fully repaid to the Group. 
The balances of receivables that remain within initial trade terms (as detailed in the table) are considered to 
be of high credit quality. 
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9. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Consolidated Gross 
amount

Past due 
and 

impaired

Past due but not impaired 

(days overdue) 

Within 
initial trade 

terms

<30 31-60 61-90 >90

2015 $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Trade receivables - - - - - - -

Other receivables - - - - - - -

Amounts 
receivable from 
associated 
companies 

56,210 56,210 - - - - -

GST Clearing 
account 

- - - - - - -

Total 56,210 56,210 - - - - -

2014

Trade receivables 282,233 1,641 - - - - 280,592

Other receivables 15,426 - - - - - 15,426

Amounts 
receivable from 
associated 
companies 

74,785 74,785 - - - - -

GST Clearing 
account 

- - - - - - -

Total 372,444 76,426 - - - - 296,018

Neither the group nor parent entity holds any financial assets with terms that have been renegotiated, but 
which would otherwise be past due or impaired.  

Consolidated Group 

Note 2015 2014

$ $

b. Financial assets classified as loans and receivables

Trade and other receivables 22 - 296,018 

c. Collateral held as security 

No Collateral has been received for amounts owing to the Group and Parent Entity. 

d. Collateral pledged 

No charge over trade receivables has been provided for during the year. 
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11. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSET

Consolidated Group 

Note 2015 2014

$ $

Available-for-sale financial assets:

- shares in other corporations - 20 

12. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Consolidated Group 

Note 2015 2014

$ $

Office and computer equipment – at cost - 1,597,972 

Less: Accumulated depreciation - (1,593,124) 

- 4,848 

Furniture and fittings – at cost - 207,189 

Less: Accumulated depreciation - (206,885) 

- 304 

Total property, plant and equipment, at net book value - 5,152 

Reconciliations for 2015 

Office & 
computer 

equipment
Furniture & 

fittings Total

$ $ $ 

Carrying amount at beginning of year 4,848 304 5,152 

Additions - - - 

Disposals (4,848) (304) (5,152) 

Carrying amount at end of year - - - 

Reconciliations for 2014

Carrying amount at beginning of year 18,445 369 18,814 

Additions - - - 

Disposals (2,995) - (2,995) 

Depreciation (10,602) (65) (10,667)

Carrying amount at end of year 4,848 304 5,152 
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13. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD 
Consolidated Group 

Note 2015 2014

$ $

Investment in an associate 200 40

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method 
of accounting and is carried at cost by the holding entity. Information relating to the associate is set out 
below. 

Name of 
company 

Principal activity Ownership interest Consolidated 
carrying amount 

Holding entity 
carrying amount 

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 

Unlisted $ $ $ $
Go Green 
Holdings 
Limited 

Investment 
company 

45.45 % 

Fully paid 
ordinary 

shares

Nil

200 - 200 -

Go JLJ 
Entertainment 
Pty Ltd 
(Incorporated in 
Australia) 

Music 
Entertainment 

Nil 40% 
 Fully 

paid 
ordinary 

shares

- 40 - 40

Pharmasafe 
Limited 
(Incorporated in 
Australia) 

Sale of Chinese 
herbal remedy 
“Liver Bioguard” 

40% 
 Fully 

paid 
ordinary 

shares

40% 
 Fully 

paid 
ordinary 

shares

- - - -
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13. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)
Consolidated Group 

Note 2015 2014

$ $

Movements in carrying amount of investments in 
associates 

Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year 40 40 

New investment during the year 200 - 

Share of loss from continuing activities after income tax (40) - 

Carrying amount at the end of the financial year 200 40

Results attributable to associates 

Loss before related income tax - - 

Income tax expense - - 

Loss from continuing activities after related income tax - - 

Retained loss attributable to associates at the beginning of the 
financial year 

(34,400) (34,400)

Retained loss attributable to associates at the end of the 
financial year (34,400) (34,400)

Reserve attributable to associates - -

Share of associates’ contingent liabilities - -

Share of associates’ expenditure commitments - -

Summarised Presentation of Aggregate Assets, Liabilities 
and Performance of Associates 

Current assets of associates 1,960 1,960 

Non-current assets of associates - - 

Total assets of associates 1,960 1,960 

Current liabilities of associates 87,761 87,761 

Non-current liabilities of associates - - 

Total liabilities of associates 87,761 87,761 

Net liabilities of associates (85,801) (85,801) 

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Consolidated Group 

Note 2015 2014

$ $

Goodwill 

Cost 4,336,471 4,336,471 

Accumulated impaired losses (4,336,471) - 

Net carrying amount 
- 4,336,471 
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14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Consolidated Group 

Note 2015 2014

$ $

Recording Agreements 
Cost - 85,916 

Accumulated amortisation and impairment - (85,916) 

Net carrying amount - - 

Total intangibles - 4,336,471 

Consolidated Group: Goodwill Recording 
Agreements 

Year ended 30 June 2013 

Balance at the beginning of year 4,336,471 85,916

Amortisation charge - -

Impairment losses - (85,916)

Closing value at 30 June 2014 4,336,471 -

Year ended 30 June 2014 

Balance at the beginning of year 4,336,471 -

Amortisation charge - -

Impairment losses (4,336,471) -

Closing value at 30 June 2015 - -

Recording Agreements was recognised as a result of the acquisition of PLW Entertainment in 2010. 
Relating to its artist management and music recoding businesses. The fair value of intangible assets is 
estimated by discounting estimated future net cash flows from the asset. 

Intangible assets, other than goodwill, have finite useful lives.  Future amortisation charges for intangible 
assets will be included under depreciation and amortisation expense per the statement of comprehensive 
income. Goodwill has an indefinite useful life.

Impairment tests for goodwill 
All goodwill is allocated to the Group’s sole cash-generating units which are based on the Group’s reporting 
segment. 

Consolidated Group 

2015 2014

$ $

IPTV Entertainment and Media segment - 4,336,471
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15. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Consolidated Group 

Note 2015 2014

$ $

CURRENT
Unsecured liabilities 

Trade payables - 54,125
Amount payables to related parties - 614,255
Employee benefits - 110,403
Other payables & accrued expenses 2,948,266 4,002,880

2,948,266 4,781,664

Financial liabilities at amortised cost classified as trade and 
other payables 

Trade and other payables 2,948,266 4,781,664
Less employee benefits - (110,403)

Financial liabilities as trade and other payables 22 2,948,266 4,671,262

16. BORROWINGS

Consolidated Group 

Note 2015 2014

$ $

Unsecured liabilities 

Interest bearing loan from: 

CURRENT

- Others 962,669 -

NON-CURRENT

- Related entities 1,031,362 747,454

- Others - 962,669

Total Borrowings 22 1,994,031 1,710,123

    The total interest payable on borrowings is $622,176 (2014: $580,060) including in trade and other 
payables. 

17. PROVISIONS
Consolidated Group 

Note 2015 2014

$ $

Provision for employee long service leave entitlements

Opening balance 69,558 78,700

Additional provisions - -

Amounts used (69,558) (9,142)

- 69,558
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Consolidated Group 

2015 2014

$ $

Provision for employee long service leave entitlements

Current - 66,330

Non-Current - 3,228

- 69,558

A provision has been recognised for employee entitlements relating to long service leave. In calculating the 
present value of future cash flows in respect of long service leave, the probability of long service leave is 
based on historical data. The measurement and recognition criteria relating to employee benefits have been 
included in Note 1 to this report. 

18. ISSUED CAPTIAL
Consolidated Group 

2015 2014

$ $

Issued and paid up capital

998,514,133 (2014: 978,514,133) ordinary shares fully paid 45,441,170 45,041,170

Consolidated Group 

2015 2014

a. Ordinary Shares No. No.

At the beginning of the reporting period: 978,514,133 978,514,133

Shares issued during the year

- 30 October 2014 20,000,000 -

At the end of the reporting period 998,514,133 978,514,133

The Company has issued capital amounting to 998,514,133 ordinary shares. 

Ordinary shares participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the parent entity in proportion 
to the number of shares held. At the shareholders’ meeting each ordinary share is entitled to one vote when 
a poll is called, otherwise each shareholder has one vote on a show of hands. 

(B) OPTION RESERVES Consolidated Group 

Note 2015 2014

$ $

Option reserves at the beginning of the year 722,000 650,000

Share based remuneration - 122,000

Option reserves at the end of the year 722,000 722,000

Option Reserve  

The option reserve records items recognised as expenses on valuation of employee share options.
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18. ISSUED CAPTIAL (CONTINUED)

Capital Management 

Management controls the capital of the Consolidated Entity in order to ensure that the group can fund 
its operations and continue as a going concern. 

The Consolidated Entity’s debt and capital include ordinary share capital and long term loan from the 
related parties, supported by financial assets.

There are no externally imposed capital requirements.

Management effectively manages the group’s capital by assessing the group’s financial risks and 
adjusting its capital structure in response to changes in these risks and in the market.  

These include the management of debt levels, plan to generate surpluses from operations, plan to realise 
the value of investments in associated entities and issues of new share. 

There have been no changes in the strategy adopted by management to control the capital of the 
Consolidated Entity since the prior year.

Considering the equity position of the Consolidated Entity as at 30 June 2015 and 30 June 2014, 
gearing ratios have not been calculated. 

19. CASH FLOWS INFORMATION

(A) RECONCILIATION OF CASH

For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash includes cash on hand and on call deposits with 
banks or financial institutions, net of bank overdrafts. Cash at the end of the reporting period is shown 
in the statement of financial position as: 

Consolidated Group 

Note 2015 2014

$ $

Cash at bank and on hand - 159
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19. CASH FLOWS INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(B) RECONCILIATION OF CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATIONS WITH OPERATING LOSS 
AFTER INCOME TAX

Consolidated Group 

Note 2015 2014

$ $

Operating loss after income tax (3,394,112) (1,398,729)

Non-cash flows in operating loss

Net gain on disposal of investments (155,000) -
Net gain on deconsolidation (2,171,073) -
Impairment loss 4,336,470 -
Depreciation and amortisation - 32,146
Share based remuneration - options - 122,000

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of the effects of 
purchase and disposal of controlled entities

(Increase) / decrease in operating receivables 296,017 (101,052)
(Increase) / decrease in inventories - 1,452
Increase / (decrease) in operating payables  278,790 721,481
Increase / (decrease) in provisions - (9,142)

Net cash used in operating activities (808,908) (631,844)

(C) LOAN FACILITIES

Loan facilities 1,500,000 2,500,000
Amount utilised 1,031,362 1,710,123

Amount un-utilised 468,638 789,877 

The Company has received continuing loan facilities with a limit of $1,500,000 (2014: 1,500,000) from 
Sino Investment Services Pty Ltd. It matures on 30 September 2016 with no interest. 

In the prior year the Company had a facility with a limit of $1,000,000 from Sino Strategic International 
Limited (“SSI”).  SSI entered liquidation on 1 July 2015.  As disclosed in Note 29 Events Occurring 
After Reporting Date, the SSI liquidator has successfully challenged the original terms of the loan 
agreement in the Supreme Court and the loan is repayable on demand, pending appeal by the Company. 
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20. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION

(A) NAMES AND POSITIONS HELD OF CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT ENTITY KEY 
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL IN OFFICE AT ANY TIME DURING THE FINANCIAL 
YEAR 

Key management personnel Position 

Richard Li Chairman - Executive 

Joe Fekete Director – Non-executive (retired on 4 March 2015)

Philip Chan Director – Non-executive 

Jermaine L Jackson Director – Non-executive (retired on 14 January 2015)

Kevin Wong Director – Executive (appointed on 27 March 2015)

Refer to the Remuneration Report section of the Directors Report for the remuneration paid or payable 
to each member of the Group’s key management personnel for the year ended 30 June 2015. 

The totals of remuneration paid to key management personnel of the Company and the Group during 
the year are as follows: 

2015 2014

$ $

Short-term employee benefits 124,000 220,000

Post-employment benefits - 10,800

Other long-term benefits - 2,000

Share-based payments - options - 108,929

- 341,729
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20. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION (CONTINUED)
(B) OPTIONS AND RIGHTS HOLDINGS

Number of options held by Key Management Personnel 

Name 
Balance 
1.7.2014 

Granted as 
compensation

Options 
exercised 

Options 
lapsed 

Other 
Changes 

Balance 
30.6.2015 

Vested and 
exercisable
30.6.2015 

Richard Li 20,000,000 - - - - 20,000,000 20,000,000 

Joe Fekete 500,000 - - - (500,000) - - 

Philip Chan 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 1,000,000 
Jermaine L 
Jackson 2,000,000 - - - (2,000,000) - - 

Kevin Wong - - - - 1,000,000* 1,000,000 1,000,000 

Total 23,500,000 - - - (1,500,000) 22,000,000 22,000,000 

Name 
Balance 
1.7.2013 

Granted as 
compensation

Options 
exercised 

Options 
lapsed 

Other 
Changes 

Balance 
30.6.2014 

Vested and 
exercisable
30.6.2014 

Richard Li 10,000,000 10,000,000 - - - 20,000,000 20,000,000 

Joe Fekete - 500,000 - - - 500,000 500,000 

Philip Chan 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 1,000,000 
Jermaine L 
Jackson - 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 2,000,000 

Total 11,000,000 12,500,000 - - - 23,500,000 23,500,000 

* Kevin Wong received the options in the company prior to being appointed a director on 27 March 2015 

21. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 

The following share-based payment arrangements existed at 30 June 2015: 

On 26 February 2014, 14,000,000 options were granted to GoConnect directors, Richard Li, Joe Fekete and 
Jermaine L Jackson and senior management, to take up ordinary shares at an exercise price of $0.02 each. 
The options vest on 26 February 2015 and can be exercised on or before 26 February 2019. The options 
hold no voting or dividend rights. At balance date, no share option has been exercised. Options granted to 
directors and vested but not exercised will be automatically cancelled upon the resignation or retirement of 
the directors. 

On 30 November 2011, 13,000,000 options were granted to GoConnect directors, Richard Li and Philip 
Chan and senior management, to take up ordinary shares at an exercise price of $0.02 each. The options 
vest on 30 November 2012 and can be exercised on or before 30 November 2016. The options hold no 
voting or dividend rights. At balance date, no share option has been exercised. Options granted to directors 
and vested but not exercised will be automatically cancelled upon the resignation or retirement of the 
directors. 

All options granted are for ordinary shares in GoConnect Limited, which confer a right of one ordinary 
share for every option held.
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A summary of the movements of all listed company options issued is as follows:

21. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

2015 2014 

Number of 
Options

Weighted 
Average 

Exercise Price
$

Number of 
Options

Weighted 
Average 

Exercise Price
$

Outstanding at the 
beginning of the year  27,000,000 0.020 13,000,000 0.020

Granted  - - 14,000,000 0.020

Forfeited  (2,500,000) 0.020 - -

Exercised  - - - -

Expired  - - - -

Outstanding at year-end 24,500,000 0.020 27,000,000 0.020

Exercisable at year-end 24,500,000 0.020 27,000,000 0.020

The options outstanding at 30 June 2015 had a weighted average exercise price of $0.020 and a weighted 
average remaining contractual life of 3.42 years. Exercise price for all options outstanding at 30 June 2015 is 
$0.020.  

The weighted average fair value of the options granted during the year ended 30 June 2015 was $0.020. 

This price was calculated by using a Black Scholes option pricing model applying the following inputs: 

Weighted average exercise price $0.020

Weighted average life of the option 5 years 

Underlying share price $0.013 

Expected share price volatility 156% 

Risk free interest rate 3.84% 

Historical volatility has been the basis for determining expected share price volatility as it is assumed that 
this is indicative of future tender, which may not eventuate. 

The life of the options is based on the historical exercise patterns, which may not eventuate in the future. 

Options granted as share-based payments are as follow:  

Grant date Vesting date Number Exercise price Life of the option

30 November 2011 30 November 2012 13,000,000 $0.020 5 years 

24 February 2014 24 February 2014 14,000,000 $0.020 5 years 

Included under employee benefits expense in the statement of comprehensive income is $nil (2014: 
$122,000) which relates to equity-settled share-based payment transactions. 
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22. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Group’s financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, accounts receivable and payable 
loans to and from related parties. 

The totals for each category of financial instruments, measured in accordance with AASB 139 as detailed in 
the accounting policies to these financial statements, are as follows: 

Consolidated Group 
Note 2015 2014

$ $

Financial Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 8 - 159

Loans and receivables 9 - 296,018

- 296,177

Financial Liabilities 

Trade and other payables 15 2,948,266 4,671,262

Borrowings 16 1,994,031 1,710,123

4,942,297 6,381,385

All financial instruments carried by the Group are subsequently at amortized costs. 

Financial Risk Management Policies

The main purpose of non-derivative financial instruments is to raise finance for operations. 

Derivatives are not used by the Group. The Group does not speculate in the trading of derivative 
instruments. 

The senior managements meet with members of the Board of Directors regularly to evaluate treasury 
management strategies and financial risks in the context of recent economic conditions and forecasts. 

The Consolidated Entity has insignificant exposure to fluctuations in foreign currencies as it has minimal 
transactions, assets and liabilities in foreign currencies. 

The Consolidated Entity manages liquidity risk by monitoring forecast cash flows and ensuring that it has 
access to adequate new capital and borrowing facilities when required. 

The maximum exposure to credit risk, excluding the value of any collateral or other security, at balance 
date to recognized financial assets, is the carrying amount, net of any provisions for impairment of those 
assets, as disclosed in the statement of financial position and notes to the financial statements. 

The Consolidated Entity does not have any material credit risk exposure to any single receivable or group 
of receivables under financial instruments entered into by the Consolidated Entity. 

Specific Financial Risk Exposures and Management 

The main risks the Group is exposed to through its financial instruments are interest rate risk, liquidity risk 
and credit risk.

a.   Interest rate risk 

Exposure to interest rate risk arises on financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at reporting 
date whereby a future change in interest rates will affect future cash flows. The Group is also exposed 
to earnings volatility on floating rate instruments.   

Interest rate risk of the Group is not significant risk and interest rate swaps are not used. 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015 

GOCONNECT LIMITED ACN 0 8 9  2 4 0  3 5 3 AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES 

56

22. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

The net effective variable interest rate borrowings (i.e. unhedged debt) exposes the Group to interest 
rate risk which will impact future cash flows and interest charges and is indicated by the following 
floating interest rate financial liabilities: 

Consolidated Group 
Note 2015 2014

$ $

Floating rate instruments 

Borrowings 16 1,994,031 1,710,123 

b.   Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the Group might encounter difficulty in settling its debts or 
otherwise meeting its obligations related to financial liabilities. The Group manages this risk through 
the following mechanisms: 

- preparing forward looking cash flow analysis in relation to its operational, investing and financing 
activities 

- monitoring undrawn credit facilities 

- obtaining funding from a variety of sources 

- managing credit risk related to financial assets 

- investing only in surplus cash with major financial institutions 

- comparing the maturity profile of financial liabilities with the realisation profile of financial assets 

The Group’s policy is to ensure no more than 10% of borrowings should mature in any 12-month 
period. 

The tables below reflect an undiscounted contractual maturity analysis for financial liabilities. 

Cash flows realised from financial assets reflect management’s expectation as to the timing of 
realisation. Actual timing may therefore differ from that disclosed. The timing of cash flows presented 
in the table to settle financial liabilities reflects the earliest contractual settlement dates and does not 
reflect management’s expectations that banking facilities will be rolled forward. 

Financial liability and financial asset maturity analysis 
Consolidated Entity Within 1 Year 1 to 5 Years Over 5 Years Total 

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Financial liabilities due 
for payment 

Trade and other 
payables 3,910,935 4,057,007 - 962,669 - - 3,910,935 5,019,676 

Amount payable to 
related parties - 614,255 1,031,362 747,454 - - 1,031,362 1,361,709 

Total expected outflows 3,910,935 4,671,262 1,031,362 1,710,123 - - 4,942,297 6,381,385 

Financial assets – cash 
flows realisable 

Cash and cash 
equivalents - 159 - - - - - 159 

Trade and other 
receivables - 296,018 - - - - - 296,018 

Total anticipated inflows - 296,177 - - - - - 296,177 

Net outflow on financial 
instruments (3,910,935) (4,375,085) (1,031,362) (1,710,123) - - (4,492,297) (6,085,208) 
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22. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

c.   Credit risk

Exposure to credit risk relating to financial assets arises from the potential non-performance by counter 
parties to contract obligations that could lead to a financial loss to the Group. 

Credit risk is managed through the maintenance of procedures (such procedures include the utilisation 
of systems for the approval, granting and renewal of credit limits, regular monitoring of exposures 
against such limits and monitoring of the financial stability of significant customers and counter 
parties), ensuring to the extent possible, that customers and counter parties to transactions are of sound 
credit worthiness. Such monitoring is used in assessing receivables for impairment. Credit terms are 
generally 7 to 30 days from the invoice date. 

Risk is also minimised through investing surplus funds in financial institutions that maintain a high 
credit rating. Where the Group is unable to ascertain a satisfactory credit risk profile in relation to a 
customer or counter party, payment is required prior to delivery of goods and/or services. 

Credit Risk Exposures

The maximum exposure to credit risk by class of recognised financial assets at balance date, excluding 
the value of any collateral or other security held, is equivalent to the carrying value and classification of 
those financial assets (net of any provisions) as presented in the statement of financial position. 

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk with any single counter party or group of 
counter parties. 

Trade and other receivables that are neither past due or impaired are considered to be of high credit 
quality.  Aggregates of such amounts are as detailed at Note 9. 

Credit risk related to balances with banks and other financial institutions is managed by senior 
management in accordance with approved Board policy. Such policy requires that surplus funds are 
only invested with counter parties with a Standard & Poor’s rating of at least AA.  The following table 
provides information regarding credit risk relating to cash and money market securities based on 
Standard & Poor’s counter party credit ratings. 

Consolidated Group 
Note 2015 2014

$ $

Cash and cash equivalents 

-   AA Rated - 159

Fair Values

Fair value estimation

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are presented in the following table and can 
be compared to their carrying values as presented in the statement of financial position.  Fair values 
are those amounts at which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, 
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.   
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22. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

Consolidated Entity Footnote 2015 2014 

Net 
Carrying 

Value

Fair Value Net 
Carrying 

Value

Fair Value

$ $ $ $

Financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalents (i) - - 159 159

Trade and other receivables (i) - - 296,018 296,018

Total financial assets - - 296,177 296,177

Financial liabilities 

Trade and other payables (i) 2,948,266 2,948,266 4,671,262 4,671,262

Borrowings (ii) 1,994,031 1,994,031 1,710,123 1,710,123

Total financial liabilities 4,942,297 4,942,297 6,381,385 6,381,385

The fair values disclosed in the above table have been determined based on the following 
methodologies: 

i. Cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, royalty advances and trade and other 
payables are short-term instruments in nature whose carrying value is equivalent to fair value.  
Trade and other payables exclude amounts provided for relating to annual leave which is not 
considered a financial instrument. 

ii. Fair values are determined using a discounted cash flow model incorporating current commercial 
borrowing rates.  The fair values of fixed rate bank debt will differ to the carrying values. 

Financial Instruments Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

The Group does not have any financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss. 

Sensitivity Analysis

The following table illustrates sensitivities to the Group’s exposures to changes in interest rates. The 
table indicates the impact on how profit and equity values reported at balance date would have been 
affected by changes in the relevant risk variable that management considers to be reasonably possible. 
These sensitivities assume that the movement in a particular variable is independent of other 
variables. 

Consolidated Group 
Note Profit Equity

$ $

Year Ended 30 June 2015 

+/- 2% in interest rates -/+19,253 -/+19,253

Year Ended 30 June 2014 

+/- 2% in interest rates -/+31,645 -/+31,645
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23. CAPITAL AND LEASING COMMITMENTS 
Consolidated Group

Note 2015 2014

Operating Lease Commitments $ $

Payable – minimum lease payments: 

- not later than 1 year 3,021 - 

- between 1 year and 5 years 101,075 - 

- greater than 5 years - - 

104,096 - 

The property lease is a non-cancellable lease with a 3-year term, with rent payable monthly in advance. 
Contingent rental provisions within the lease agreement require the minimum lease payments shall be 
increased 4% per annum. An option exists to renew the lease at the end of the 3-year term for an additional 
term of 3 years. 

24. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

There were no contingent liabilities or contingent assets. 

25. OPERATING SEGMENTS 

The Group’s operating business activities were focused on the development and delivery of IPTV products. 
All assets held by the Group during the reporting period were located within Australia. Revenue attributable 
to external customers was within Australia.
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26. CONTROLLED ENTITIES 

a.  Controlled Entities Consolidated 

Name of the above controlled 
entities

Class of 
shares

Country of incorporation % owned 
2015

% owned 
2014

GoConnect Australia Pty Ltd ordinary Australia - 100 

GoTrek Pty Ltd ordinary Australia - 100 

TBS TV Pty Ltd  ordinary Australia - 100 

Uctv.fm Pty Ltd  ordinary Australia 100 100 

Asia IPTV Pty Ltd ordinary Australia - 100 

First Mongolian Marketing Ltd ordinary BVI - 51 

EcoConnect Australia Pty Ltd ordinary Australia 100 100 

As announced to the ASX on 9 February, 2015, the Board of GoConnect Ltd, has resolved to let 
GoConnect Australia Pty Ltd to continue its liquidation process rather than converting it to voluntary 
administration as envisaged previously. Accordingly, the businesses of GoConnect Australia Pty Ltd has 
been discontinued. GoConnect Australia Pty Ltd was de-consolidated from the accounts of the Group 
which gave rise to the reduction in comprehensive loss of the Group of $1,687,199. 

The Group has resolved to restructure and simplify its businesses by retaining only uctv.fm Pty Ltd as a 
continuing operating subsidiary, other remaining subsidiaries will be dormant or be deregistered. 

27. OTHER RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES  

(A)  The Group’s main related parties are as follows: 

(i) Key management personnel: 

Any person(s) having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of 
the entity, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of that entity, are 
considered key management personnel. 

For details of disclosures relating to key management personnel, refer to Note 20. 

(B)  Transactions with related parties 

Transactions between related parties are on normal commercial terms and conditions no more favourable 
than those available to other parties unless otherwise stated. 
The following transactions occurred with related parties: 

Consolidated Group 
Note 2015 2014

$ $
(i) In accordance with an agreement entered into between 

the Company and SISL, SISL would reimburse the direct 
costs incurred by the Company on behalf of SISL in 
relation to the development of business relationships. The 
total reimbursement of cost paid or payable by SISL to 
the Company - 28,221
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27. OTHER RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

Consolidated Group 
Note 2015 2014

(ii) The Company has received continuing credit facility from 
SISL. This amount represents the total balance that has 
been drawn down under the facility.  16 1,031,362 747,454

(iii) The Company has arrangement with SISL in relation to 
receipt and disbursement monies on behalf of the 
Company in relation to sale of shares asset. No 
commission or fee is paid to SISL by the Company. The 
total monies received and disbursed by SISL on behalf of 
the Company 125,000 -

28. RESERVES 

a. Option Reserve 

The option reserve records items recognised as expenses on valuation of employee share options.

b. Asset Revaluation Reserve 

The asset revaluation reserve records revaluation of financial assets. 

29. EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER REPORTING DATE 

- GoConnect Ltd has an outstanding liability to Sino Strategic International Ltd (in liquidation) (“SSI”) 
of approximately $1.6 million under a loan agreement entered into between GoConnect Ltd and SSI in 
October 2003. Repayment of the loan under the agreement is at the discretion of the Board of Directors 
of GoConnect Ltd. Since SSI went into liquidation in 2015, the liquidator of SSI successfully 
challenged the repayment term of the loan agreement in the Supreme Court on 17 March 2016. 
Supported by legal advice, GoConnect Ltd believes the company has strong legal grounds for a 
successful appeal against this decision, Documentations are being prepared appealing against this 
decision. The appeal process commences upon the Company filing the appeal documents at the registry 
in the Supreme Court. 

- On 31 January 2016, GoConnect Ltd and LJC entered into a new settlement deed (“Settlement Deed”) 
capping the maximum liability owing by GoConnect Ltd to US$700,000 and this liability was satisfied 
by GoConnect Ltd transferring 4 million shares in Priority One Network Group Ltd (“Priority One”) 
held by GoConnect Ltd to LJC. GoConnect Ltd is obliged to introduce buyer(s) for these shares to LJC 
to realize at least US$700,000 and LJC has the right to claim any shortfall from GoConnect Ltd.  

There is no other item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature, likely, in the opinion of the 
directors of the Consolidated Entity, to affect significantly the operations of the Consolidated Entity, the 
results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Consolidated Entity in subsequent financial years. 
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30. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 

On 9 February, 2015, the Board of GoConnect, resolved to let GoConnect Australia Pty Ltd 
(“GoConnect Australia”) to be liquidated rather than converting it to voluntary administration as 
envisaged previously. Accordingly, the business of GoConnect Australia was discontinued and 
deconsolidated as at that date from the Group. 

Financial information relating to the discontinued operation to the date of disposal is set out below. 

Consolidated Group

Note 2015 2014

$ $

Revenue 9,280 376,843 

Expense (493,154) (1,037,613) 

Net gain on deconsolidation 2,171,073 - 

Profit/(loss) before income tax 1,687,199 (660,770) 

Income tax expense - - 
Profit/(loss) attributable to members of the parent entity 1,687,199 (660,770) 

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities (87,679) (196,634) 

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities - (261) 

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities - - 

Net cash increase/(decrease) from discontinued operation (87,679) (196,895) 

31. COMPANY DETAILS

The registered office and the principal place of business of the Company is 

1st Floor, 951 Nepean Hwy 
Bentleigh VIC 3204 
Australia 
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The directors declare that: 

1. the financial statements and disclosures that are detailed within the Remuneration Report in the 
Directors’ Report and notes set out on pages 28 to 62, are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 
and: 

(a) comply with Accounting Standards, which, as stated in accounting policy Note 1 to the 
financial statements, constitutes explicit and unreserved compliance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS); and 

(b)  give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 30 June 2015 and of the performance for 
the year ended on that date of the company and consolidated group; 

2. The directors’ have declared that: 

(a)  the financial records of the Company for the financial year have been properly maintained in 
accordance with section 286 of the Corporations Act 2001; 

(b) the financial statements and notes for the financial year comply with the Accounting Standards 
and the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS); and 

(c) the financial statements and notes for the financial year give a true and fair view. 

3. In the directors’ opinion: 

(a) the financial statements and notes are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001;  

(b) the remuneration disclosures on pages 15 to 20 in the remuneration report in the directors’ 
report comply with Australian Accounting Standard AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures; and 

(c) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and 
when they become due and payable. 

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the board of directors of the Company.

RICHARD LI 
CHAIRMAN 

Dated at Melbourne this 12th day of April 2016. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF 

GOCONNECT LIMITED 

Report on the Financial Report 

We have audited the accompanying financial report of GoConnect Limited, which comprises the consolidated 

statement of financial position as at 30 June 2015, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, 

consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 

notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the 

directors' declaration of the consolidated entity comprising the company and the entities it controlled at the year’s 

end or from time to time during the financial year.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report 

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair 

view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal 

control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In Note 1, the directors also state, in accordance with 

Accounting Standard AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements, that the financial statements comply with 

International Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 

accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant 

ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 

financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the 

risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 

assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 

financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 

purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes 

evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made 

by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.  
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Independence  

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001. We 

confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which has been given to the 

directors of GoConnect Limited, would be in the same terms if given to the directors as at the time of this auditor's 

report.  

Opinion 

In our opinion: 

(a) the financial report of GoConnect Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2015 and of its

performance for the year ended on that date; and

(ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

(b) the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in Note 1.

Emphasis of Matter 

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1(p) in the financial report, which indicates that the 

company and consolidated entity incurred net losses of $675,483 (2014 $1,761,671 loss) and $3,394,112 (2014: 

$1,398,729 loss), respectively, and the consolidated entity had cash outflows from operating activities of $808,908 

(2014: $631,844 outflow) during the year ended 30 June 2015. As of that date, the consolidated entity’s current 

liabilities exceeded total assets by $3,910,935 (2014: $4,551,797 and the consolidated entity had cash balances 

of $nil (2014: $159). These conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 1(p), indicate the existence of 

a significant uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the company's and consolidated entity’s ability to 

continue as going concerns and therefore, the company and consolidated entity may be unable to realise their 

assets and discharge their liabilities in the normal course of business. 

Report on the Remuneration Report

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in pages 15 to 20 of the directors’ report for the year ended 

30 June 2015.  The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the 

Remuneration Report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our responsibility is to 

express an opinion on the Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with Australian 

Auditing Standards.  

Opinion

In our opinion the Remuneration Report of GoConnect Limited for the year ended 30 June 2015 complies with 

section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. 

RSM AUSTRALIA PARTNERS 

J S CROALL 

Partner 

Melbourne, VIC 

Date: 13 April 2016 
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The shareholder information set out below was applicable as at 31 March 2016. 

A. DISTRIBUTION OF EQUITY SECURITIES 

Analysis of numbers of equity security holders by size of holding: 
Class of equity security 

Ordinary shares
Shares Options

1 – 1,000 43 - 
1,001 – 5,000 28 - 
5,001 – 10,000 200 - 

10,001 – 100,000 522 - 
100,001 and over 579 6 

1372 6 

There were 625 holders of less than a marketable parcel of ordinary shares. 

B. EQUITY SECURITY HOLDERS  

Twenty largest shareholders.  
The names of the twenty largest shareholders are listed below: 

Name Number Held Percentage of 
Issued Shares

SSI NOMINEES PTY LTD 126,711,772 12.69
LEET INVESTMENTS PTY LIMITED 65,000,000 6.51
J P MORGAN NOMINEES AUSTRALIA 
LIMITED 

55,838,193 5.59

LEET INVESTMENTS PTY LTD 
<SUPERANNUATION FUND A/C> 

39,200,000 3.93

SSI NOMINEES PTY LTD <NO 2 A/C> 28,045,694 2.81
CITICORP NOMINEES PTY LIMITED 27,187,667 2.72
PARKS AUSTRALIA PTY LTD 26,018,279 2.61
GENERAL & PRIVATE FUNDS 
MANAGEMENT PTY LTD 

22,750,000 2.28

HSBC CUSTODY NOMINEES 
(AUSTRALIA) LIMITED 

21,748,653 2.18

MRS EDNA KNOWLES 15,972,717 1.60
MR HO TONG KHOO 15,500,000 1.55
BAINTON LIMITED 15,180,000 1.52
NEFCO NOMINEES PTY LTD 13,639,500 1.37
MR ANTONIO MINUZZO 12,390,523 1.24
RONAY INVESTMENTS PTY LTD 11,920,805 1.19
MR NIKOLAI SHIROBOKOV + MRS 
SVETLANA SHIROBOKOV 

11,500,000 1.15

MR BRYAN RAYMOND COTTER 10,500,000 1.05
BONNYVALE COMPANY LIMITED 10,000,000 1.00
SSI NOMINEES PTY LTD <NO 2 A/C> 10,000,000 1.00
SSI NOMINEES PTY LTD 10,000,000 1.00

549,103,803 54.99%
Total Ordinary Shares 998,514,133 100.00%



SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

GOCONNECT LIMITED ACN 0 8 9  2 4 0  3 5 3  AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES 

67

Other unquoted equity securities 

Number 
on issue 

Number 
of holders 

Options issued  34,500,000 6 

C. VOTING RIGHTS 

The voting rights attaching to each class of equity securities are set out below: 
(a) Ordinary shares 

On a show of hands every member present at the meeting or by proxy shall have one vote and upon a poll 
each share shall have one vote. 

(b) Options 
No voting rights. 

D. STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING 

The ordinary shares of the company are quoted on the Australian Securities Exchange (ASX) under ASX code 
“GCN”, and the Regulated Unofficial Market on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange under stock code “GCK-GR”. 

E. ON-MARKET BUY BACK 

There is no current on-market buy-back. 


